S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of GMR Airports Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of GMR Airports Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31. 2019, the Statement of Profit and
Loss. including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act.
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31. 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially missiated.

The annual report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o 1ssue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggrepate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks o material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS [inancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ol such controls,

«  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

k:

[

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government ol India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31. 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(1) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2 to this report;

(2) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act. (refer note 58 to these Ind AS Financial Statements),
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 39 (except 39(ii)(1)) to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements:

ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts

ili.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Eduecation and Protection Fund by the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ACM Firm Registration Mumber: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
Place New Delhi

Date: May 1§,20'9
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements”™ of our report of even date

Re: GMR Airports Limited (*the Company™)

(i) (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets,

{b) Fixed assets have been physically wverified by the management during the year and no material

discrepancies were identified on such verification,

(e} According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immoveable

(i) (a)

(i) (a)

(b}

(c)

{iv)

()

ivil

(vii) (a)

ib)

properties included in property. plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly. the requirements under paragraph
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has granted loan to a company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Aet, 2013, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s interest,

In respect of loan granted to a company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Aet, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated
for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular.

There is no overdue amount of loan granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are
interested and in respect of loans and advances given. investments made and, guarantees, and securities
given have been complied with by the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning ol Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained. the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the
Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it The
provisions relating to goods and service tax, employees’ state insurance and custom duty are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding.
at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions
relating to goods and service tax, employees® state insurance and custom duty are not applicable to the
Company.
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(c)  According to the records of the Company. the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom,

(viii)

{ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii}

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

duty of excise , value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows

Name of the | Nalure of | Amount Period to | Forum where the dispute
slatute the dues (Rs) which the | is pending

_ amount relates )
Income  Tax | Income 67.068.026 | Assessment Income  Tax  Apellate
Act, 1961 Tax Year 20014-15 | Tribunal (ITAT) 1
Income  Tax | Income 534,923,104 | Assessment Commission of Income
Act, 1961 Year 2016-17 | Tax (Appeals)

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or sovernment or dues
to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the company
has utilized the monies for the purposes for which they were raised by way of debt instruments. The
Company has not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report
that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company
has been noticed or reported during the vear,

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
{refer note 58 to these Ind AS Financial Statements).

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management. transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the linancial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the company and. not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into

any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of
Companies Act, 2013,

{The space has been intentionally left blank)

3 x s

L A

v



S.R. BATLIBO1 & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountanis

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has registered as
required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

£

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: (9494 |
Place: Mew Delhi

Date: May 1€,2019
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ANNEXURE-2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

GMR Airports Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business.
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and.
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over [inancial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial
sltatements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the intemal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 094941
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 12,20\9




GMR Afrports Limited
CIMN: UssodKA1992PLCO3T4S55
Standalone Balance Sheet as ot March 31, 2019

All amount In Bupees crores re data [Xt]
Particulars MNotes March 31, 2019 TMarch 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Assety
Financial pssets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 L.GT LT71 6.99
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents ] 11.95 125 105,18
Trade Recetvables a 194 63,65 52.90
Loans 11 31.68 106.11 4236
Investments 11 19,087.48 16,832.15 16,422.65
Other financial assets 12 44.21 6532 2344
Mon- financal assets
Currenl tax assets (nel) 60,65 50.60 21.75
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 72,18 2.36 0.19
Property, plant and equipment 14 4,59 6,55 8.85
Other non- linancial assets 13 T894 B2 6B
Total Assets 1933635 EREAT 650120
Linbitities and Fquitv
Linbilities
Financlal liabilitles
Trade Payables 16
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - -
enlerprises
{ii} total outstonding dues of creditors other than micro 3268 26.91 1232
chiterpriscs and small enterprises
Dbt Securitica 17 11512 - -
Boarrowings (other than Debt Securities) 18 - 33043 393,86
Ciher financial Habilities il 151 1.46 10.43
Non financlal labilities
Cherrent tax labilities {net) L13 1.13 Li3
Provisions 0 15.86 7.48 4.61
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 154 3,137.62 3,15.79 3,107.68
Other Mon-financial Liabitilics 11 34.31 18.06 3.41
Total Liabilities 5,548.33 3,537.26 3,533,404
Equity
Equity share capital 2 1,328.39 350.87 J50.ET
Other equity 3 1244957 13,258 69 1280689
Total Equity 13,777.96 13,609, 56 13.157.76
Total Liabilities and Equity 19.326.29 17.146.82 16,691.20
5  of significant acco ligies 4
The accompanying notes arc an infegral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For 8. L BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
ICAT firm registration num ber: 101049W/E3D0004 GMR Alrports Limi -
Grandhi Kiran K ~ mu
Joint MD & CE Director
Membership Wo.: 094541 DIN:- 00061669 DIM:- MEEGEE

Flace: Mew Delhi
Date: MQJ,‘ ‘.E, 1013

A

™
GR Deepanjali
Chie ; Financial OiTicer Company Secretary
PAN- ACAPG2146H PAN:= AHXPD3202P
Place: Mew Delhi

Date: May 17, 2019




GMR Alrports Limited
CIN: U65999K A 1992PLOO3T455

Standalone Stetement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

{All amount fn Ruﬁu crores exceplt for share data unless stated otherwise)

Paorticulars MNotes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Revenue from operations

Interest ncome 24 T.28 9,51

Dividend Income 15 117.51 212.49

Revenue from contracts with customens 16 B7.88 122.20

Met gain on fair valus changss 7 518 6.20
Total revenue from operations 2832.55 350,44
Other Income 18 0.38 025
Total Income 283.23 350.63
Expenses

Finanss Costs 19 218.86 50.62

Fees and commission expenses 30 503 0.9

Employee benefits expenses 3 24.18 13.99

Diepreciation expense 32 0.92 082

Oither expenses 33 178.71 86
Total Expenses 427.70 104,58
{LosspProfit before exceptional items and tax (144.47) 250,07
Exceptional item L1 - 3231
(LosspProfit before lax {144.47) 217.76

Tax Expense: 35

(1) Current Tax - 4.48

{2) Dieferred Tax credit (65.66) (2.1%)

{Loss)Profit for the year (T4.81) 215.47
Other Com prehensive Income 6

Ttems that will not be reclnssified to profit or loss

Re-measuremenl (Josses ) gain on defined benefil plans (0.56) 0.05

Income tax impact 16 (0.02)

Gain on equity instruments designated ot FVOCT for the year (net) 329.44 280,41

Income tax impact (85.83) (44,113
Other Comprehensive Income 143.21 236,33
Total Comprehensive income 16840 45180
(Loss)Earnings per equity share 37
Basic (Bs.) (1.02) 3.27
Diluted (Hs.) (1.82) T
Mominal value per share (Rs,) 10,00 10.00

Summary of significant nccounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

Asz per our report of even date

For £ RBATLIBOT & ASSOCIATES LLP
ICAI firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountanis

L

(L

r Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 094941
Place: New Delhi
Date: May \8,2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

GMR Airports ted
¥ =
I
T
BS Raju

Grandhl Kifan Kumar

Jotnt MD & CEO
DN = 00061669

PAN:- ACAPG2146H

Place: New Delhd
Drate: May 17, 2019

Director

DIN:- (061686 o

Deepanjali Gulati

Company Secretary
PAN:- AHXPD3292P



GMR Afrports Limbted

CIN Us5999KAIRIPLCIIT455

Standalone cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2009

(All amount in Rupees crores except for shore doin unless siated otherwise)

{ March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 |
Tash fNow lram operating sclivities
Tosal {profit) before tay (144.47) 277
Adjustments to reconcile (leas)prafit before Lo 1o net cash flows
Diepreciation expenses 092 082
Exchange differences {net) 95.03 0oz
Bad debts writien off - 003
Contingent provisicn against standard asscts 641 o7
Provvision for doubtful debts and loans 584 -
Deferred income on financial assets caried 21 amortised cost (0.33) (025}
Rent expense on financial assets carried ol amortised cost 052 01d
Fair value gain/ (loss) on financial instruments carried st fair value through profit & loss 01 (0.07)
Remeasimement (gain)less on defined benefit abligation (IL56) 005
Interest incame (72.28) (8.51)
Exceptional flem . 3123
Interest on term boan 218.85 5057
Operating profit before worldng capital changes 112.74 29211
Working enpital chonges: ;
Decvease {Increase) in trade recervables G046 (10.78)
Decrease {lncrease) in loans 318 (0.25)
Decresse/ Increase) in other financial assets .76 (41.51)
(Incresse) in other non financial assets (014 (133
Increase in trade payables £77 14.50
{Decressa)Incrense in other non-financial liabilities (9.3 1464
Increase f(decresss) in other financial lisbilities 012 (5.15)
{Decressa)Increase in other Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (10659 10392
Inesease in provisions 1.97 288
Cash genernted from aperations 204.97 36812
E¥rect tees paid {net of refund) {1.05) (4233}
MNet cush flow from operating activitles (A) 203.92 32678
Cash flow Mrom Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital advancss (1.28) {037y
Purchase of non current investments (204.30) (104, 50
Parchase of current imvestments (1.308.65) (1,232.93)
Irvestrnent in share application money (17.36) =
Sales of curment invesiments 1,255.51 1,208.46
Interest income 9,50 1113
Purchase of aptionslly convertible debentures {1,703.92) i
Loan given to related parties - {10000}
Receipt of loan given to related partics 65,00 36.50
Net cnsh flow used in investing activities (B) [1,00%.45) {18101
Cash Mlow from financing activithes
Repayment of long-temm bomowings (330,43} (S04.5T)
Frocesds from long-term bormowings 2,050,060 430000
Ierest paid (18.08) {4327
Dividend pasd n preference shares .00 000
Dividend distnibation ta on preference sharea 0.00 Q00
Cash flow before exceptional ftems 1,70L.48 FiEA ]
Exceptional e (refer note 34) - (3231)
Net cash flow fromi(used in) financing activitles (C) 1,701.49 1150.15)
Nt {decrease) in cash and cosh equivalents (A + 1+ C) (0.04) (5.28)
Cash and cash equivaberits al the beginning of the year 171 6.599
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 1.67 1.71
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cheques an hand 0z
With banks :
- of current secourt 1.67 1509
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer nole T) 1.67 1.71

Burmary of significant accounting policies




GMR Alrports Limited

CIN U500 KALMIPLCO3T455

Standalone ensh flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2015

(All amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Explanatery notes to statement of cashilows

1. The shove cash flow statement has been compiled from and is based on the standalone balance sheet as gt March 31, 2019 and the related standalone statement of profit
and loss for the year ended on that date.

2. i ligbilities arisivg from financing sctivities
Particulars Changes in lkabilitics ariskng from financing activitics
March 51, 2019 March 31, 2018
Borroewlngs
As ot April 1, 2018 33043 39386
Cash flews 1,701.49 (117.84)
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GMR Airports Limited

CIN Ub5999KA1992PLC037455

Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

GMR Airports Limited ('the Company") was incorporated on February 6, 1992, as an investing
company. The Company holds majority of its investments in group companies with the objective to
consolidate and expand its airport sector. In earlier years, the Company got registered as Non-Banking
Financial Institution i.e. Systematically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI), and has
been granted certificate of registration by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide letter number DNBS (BG)
MNo. 912 /08.01.018 / 2013-14 dated April 22, 2014,

These financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
passed in board meeting held on May 17, 2019,

2. Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP),
These financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019 are the first the Company has prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirement of Division Il of Schedule 111 of Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS
Compliant Schedule 11} as applicable to standalone financial statements. [Refer note 55 for information
on how company adopted Ind AS].

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments, and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest Crores, except
when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the
reporting date (non—current) is presented in Note 54.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle ona
net basis in all of the following circumstances:

® The normal course of business

e  The event of default

e The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Company




GMR Airports Limited

CIN UsS999KA1992PLC0O37455

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

4, Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Financial Instruments: Initial Recognition
(i) Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments, as described in Notes 4(b)(i)}1) and 4(b)(i)II)
Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value (as defined in Note 4(f), except in the
case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs are added to, or
subtracted from, this amount, Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price.

(ii) Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

e Amortised cost, as explained in Note 4(b)}i)
e FVOCI (Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income), as explained in Note 4(b)(ii)
e  FVTPL (Fair value through profit and loss) in Note 4(b)(iv)

b. Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and financial investments at amortised cost

The Company measures Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and other financial investments at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

s The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.
L. Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel

e  The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

= How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

s  The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s
assessment

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original
expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in
that business model, but incorporates such information_when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets Jg?ig%_fﬂrward.

- e




GMR Airports Limited

CIN Ub5999KA1992PLCO37455

MNotes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

IL The SPPI Test (Solely payments of principal and interest)

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial
to identify whether they meet the SPPI test,

‘Principal’, for this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or
amaortisation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies
judgement and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is
denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in
the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In
such cases, the financial asset is required 1o be measured at FVTPL.,

(ii) Equity Instruments at F¥YTOCI

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless
the Company’s management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity
instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of definition of Equity under Ind AS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised in profit or loss as dividend income when the right of the payment has been established,
except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOC] are not subject
to an impairment assessment.

(iii) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on issue funds,
and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. A compound financial instrument which contains both a
liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date.

The Company had issued financial instruments with equity conversion rights and call options in the
previous years. When establishing the accounting treatment for these non-derivative instruments, the
Company first establishes whether the instrument is a compound instrument and classifies such
instrument’s components separately as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with Ind
AS 32. When allocating the initial carrying amount of a compound financial instrument to the equity
and liability components, the equity component is assigned as the residual amount after deducting from
the entire fair value of the instrument, the amount separately determined for the liability component.

(iv) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have
been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon
initial recognition when one of the following criteri et. Such designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

i
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GMR Airports Limited

CIN Ub5999KA1992PLCO37455

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value of
liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair
value are recorded in the own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss.
Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance
cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction
costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured
at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate as explained in Note 4(i).

(v) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair value,
being the premium/deemed premium received. After initial recognition, the Company’s liability under
each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The premium/deemed premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee.

¢. Reclassification of financial asseis and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business
line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of its financial
assets or liabilities in 2018-19 and 2017-18,

d. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
(i) Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company is said to have transferred the financial asset if, and only if the Company has transferred
its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

(i1} Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the ¢ ue of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is-récognised in profit
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GMR Airports Limited

CIN U65999KA1992PLC037455

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

e. Impairment of financial assets
(i) Overview of ECL principles

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on-Trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 maonths after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

i) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

ii} Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

f. Determination of fair value
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

# In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
® In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments —Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access
to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient
trading activities with regards to the volume and ligquidity of the identical assets or liabilities
and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments—Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the
entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable
inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit
spreads. In addition,  adjustments may be required for the condition or
location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued
instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant
to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments —Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and
illy capture all factors relevant to the valuation
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
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costs (FVA). Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated
with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in
order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial
instruments. The Company estimates the value of its own credit from market observable data, such as
secondary prices for its traded debt and the credit spread on credit default swaps and traded debts on
itself, Details of this are further explained in Note 43.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

g. Foreign currency translation
{i) Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in INR which is also functional currency of the company.
(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of ex-
change ruling at the date of the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional
currency at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on non-trading
activities are taken to other income/expense in the statement of profit and loss.

h. Leasing

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the
assetl.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2017, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Company as a lessec

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase
is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on
contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which they it
is incurred.

i. Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. The any recognises revenue from contracts with
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Step 1: ldentify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met,

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer,

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation
Income from consultancy services

Income from consultancy services and business support services are recognised on a pro-rata basis over
the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.

Income from aviation academy

Income from aviation academy is recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period as and when services
are rendered.

Interest Income

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carryving amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets.

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVYTPL
recognised using the contractual interest rate in net gain on fair value changes.

The effective interest rate method

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost, debt instrument measured at FVOCI and debt
instruments designated at FVTPL. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises
interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over
the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged
at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life eycle (including prepayments, penalty
interest and charges).
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If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit
risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently
amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to
receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when
the shareholders approve the dividend.

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which
consist of unbilled revenue). If the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsegquent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

j- Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.

k. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life
are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

Assot st Schedule 11
Sset category Life of Assets (in years)
Office Equipments 5
Computer 3
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Plant & Machinery 15
Vehicles &8-10

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of building over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income
fexpense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in
accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind
AS 115.

L. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount,

m, Retirement and other employment benefits

Defined Benefit Plan:

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The Company recognises contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service, [T contribution payable to the scheme for service received before reporting date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution id exceeds the contribution due for services
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received before the balance sheet date, the excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to a reduction in the future payment or a cash refund.

i) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit scheme. The Company
contributes a portion of contribution to Delhi International Airport Limited ('DIAL") Employees
Provident Fund Trust (the '"Trust’). The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if
any, between the return from the investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate. As such, the
amount to the extent of loss in the Trust, if any, is accounted by the Company as provident fund cost.

i) Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the
contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period when the contributions to
the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to
the respective trusts.

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance
Corporation of India "LIC"). The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet
date. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at
15 days salary (based on last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
ii) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Met interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or assel. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

i) Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences including sick leaves which are not expected to occur within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability
at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss
and are not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet; to the
extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting
date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a
period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability
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n. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision
by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the
liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

i) A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will not be required to settle the obligation

ii) A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

iii)A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote,

Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion
of assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

0. Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profil or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(in other comprehensive income). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii} In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (in
other comprehensive income). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Taxes, cess, duties such as sales tax/ value added tax/ service tax/ GST ete. paid on acquisition of
assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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p. Segment Reporting

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is Investment activities. Accordingly,
the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the Company’s single business segment.

(. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

r. Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") expenditure

The Company has opted to charge its CSR expenditure during the year to the statement of profit and
loss.

s. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

5. Significant accounting judgements estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

5.1. Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test (refer note 4(b)(1)(1) and 4(b)(iK1I1)). The Company determines the business model at a level
that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for
their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business

classification of those assets,
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5.2. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding
value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details about determination of fair value please
see Note 4(1) and Note 43.

5.3. Discounting rate

The Company has considered incremental borrowing rate of Airport sector for measuring deposits,
being financial assets and liabilities, at amortised cost till March 31, 2018. From period starting from
April 1, 2018,; management has considered revised incremental borrowing rate of airport sector for all
the deposits given/received post March 31, 2018; and the impact has been duly accounted in standalone
financial statements.

5.4. Effective Interest Rate Method (EIR)

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4(i). recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and
charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-
eycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense
that are integral parts of the instrument.

5.5. Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

5.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discountingczshcflow (DCF) model. The cash flows
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performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for
the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below. The company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

5.7. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies,

5.8. Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these
estimates,

For further details on provisions and other contingencies see Note 4(n) of the Summary of significant
accounting policies and Notes 20 and 39,

5.9. Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies

consistent with the currencies of the post-employment it obligation.
< ORT Ky
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The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 38 (ii) (b).
5.10. Provision for Leave encashment

The present value of leave encashment is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of discount rate, future salary increases, and withdrawal rates. Due to
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, provision for leave encashment is
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

6. Standards issued but not yet effective

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which notified Ind AS 116, Leases. The amendment rules are
effective from reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. This standard replaces current
guidance in Ind AS 17 and is a far-reaching change in accounting by lessees in particular.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for recognition, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to accounting for finance
leases under Ind AS 17. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information
in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of
financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an entity.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize a 'right-of-use asset' and a 'lease liability’ for almost all leasing
arrangements. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting
under Ind AS 17. The lessor still has to classify leases as either finance or operating.

Ind AS 116 is effective for the w.e.l April 01, 2019 using either one of two methods:

{a) Retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect certain
practical expedients as defined within Ind AS 116 (the full retrospective method); or

{(b) Retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 116 recognized at the
date of initial application (April 01, 2019) and providing certain additional disclosures as defined
in Ind AS 116 (the modified retrospective method).

The Company continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements.
The ultimate impact on leases resulting from the application of Ind AS 116 will be subject to
assessments that are dependent on many variables, including, but not limited to, the terms of the
contractual arrangements and the mix of business. The Company's considerations also include, but are
not limited to, the comparability of its financial statements and the comparability within its industry
from application of the new standard to its contractual arrangements. The Company has established an
implementation team to implement Ind AS 116 related to leases and it continues to evaluate the changes
to accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements will only be
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Mote T: Cosh and cash equivalents

Farticulars Mlarch 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018 April 1, 2007
Balance with banks
Iy Currenl accounts L&T 1.59 LR
Chesequees on hand . oz -
Deposiis with ongmal matusty kess than three months® = i 2.00
Taotal 1.67 1.71 4.9
*Fixed deposits and other balances with hank cams interest at fixed rates.
Mote B: Bank Brlance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money/pledged with hank® (Refer note 3%) 11,95 1,25 105,18
Tatal 11.95 1.25 105.18
*Fined deposits amd other balances with bank cams intenest o fived rates.
Mobe B Trade Recievables
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2008 April 1, 2017
Unsecured considered good ENE] 6363 52.90
Receivnbles which have sipmi ficanl increase in credit nsk 3 -~ x
Reosivables — credin impaired - - -
318 63,65 52.5940
Provigiom for inapainment for -
Unsecunsd eonsidered good [rofer note 4% () (.24 - -
Reosivables which have sipni Bean increase in credin risk - -
Recsivables — crodit impaived - - -
Tatal 1.94 63.63 5150

Debis dwe by dircciors or other officers of the NBFC or any of them cither severally or jointly with any other person or debg due by fimns including limsied lability pamserships

{LLPs), companies respectively i which any directar is a pastner or a directar ar a member are separately stated,

For termns amd conditven relaved 10 relaed pamy receivables refer noae 40
Trade receivables nre mon imerest bearing and are generally on tenms of 30-S0 days.

Trade Recievables due from campanies in which any dinectar is pariner, director, or p member:

_Mame of the entity March 31, 201% March 31, 2018 Aprl 1, 2017
GMR Adrpont Develapers Linsied LM 007

Cidd i Hospitality amd Retail Limited 0,54 0.53 =
CGIR Hydembad International Asrport Limited 028 0.24 0,06
Delhi Intermational Airport Limited 07 0034 -
Raxn Secumities Services Limted .ol -

Delhi Duny Free Serviees Private Limited - .01 -

LM 121 0.06

Mt 10: Loans at nmrotised cost

Particulars March 31, 2009 March 31, 2018 Agril 1, 2007
Ungsecured Losm repayable on demand {Refer note 40} 35,00 106800 36,50
Secunty deposita (Refer noe 40) L5 603 581
Unsecured loms 10 employees LIS 008 0,05
Total Gross 37.93 106.11 4236
Less: [mpaimuent loss allowance [refer note 49 (b)) (5.15) - -
Tuotnl Med JLod 10611 4136
Laans in India

hhers 37.05 10611 4236
Total Gross 37.93 104611 42 3
Less: Impaimment loss allowance [refer note 4% (b)) [5.25) = =
Total MNet 3168 106.11 41.56

(The space fas been inteniianally feff Sank}
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Made 11: lavesiments

watuation of Mnancial puaraniec

As il March 31, 2009
Al fair value
Particulars Thraugh otber Thraugh profit or Suldntal Tatal
Ampriired Coat comprehensive income loas
A) In Indlin
Eguity Instruisents® 17.334.74 - 1735474 1133474
Mual funds - - S 006 5006
Commerical papers 3420 - - - 34,26
Tatnl gross (A} 3,26 17.334,74 Sl Al 17.384.80 17414906
B) Owerscas
Diebs Secursisesd (refer nobe 52) 1,068.42 - - 1,668,42
Tetal gross (B) 1,668.42 - - 1,668,4%
Less: Allowince for Impasment boss (C) . . - = i
Tatal Met D= [A}+{B}- () II'J'(I!JE!- ITEi'H S006 1738480 1908748
As al March 31, 2018
AL e valug
Particulara Nt ok Th"’“"f other Threugh profit or Subintal Total
comprehensive income Inas
In Imdlin
Equity Instruments* 16,800 00 - 16,801 00 16,50 05
Mutual funds - EINE 3.1 115
Tatal gross 16,801 .04 a1.15 16,3215 16,852 15
Less: Allpwance for Enpainmen: bass - - - -
Tatal Mot 16,801 .00 31.13 Iﬁ.ﬂn}z 15 16,832 |
As at April 01,2017
At Enir value
Particulars Amartised Cost Through sther Through prefid or Subreotal Tatal
comprehensive income loss.
In Imdin
Equil:r Instrumens® 1641609 . 16,416 00 1641609
Buual funds - 6.56 G 56 .56
Todal gross 1,4 16104 6,36 163,472 65 16,422 65
Less: Allpwance for Impairment loss - - - -
Total Net 1641609 656 16,422 .65 16,422 63
*Blore inlormation regarding the valuahion methodology can be found in Bote 42 amd 43
The Company has d bed 918 ogquity m a8 FVOUT on the basis that ilese are not held for irading and held for strategic purposes.
*Finaneial Asseds- Investment In Equity
Investments recorded at Falr Valae throegh Other Comprebensive Income
Particulars Number of shares ﬂ._ll'll
Narch 31, X019 March 31, X018 April 1, 2007 March 31, 2019 March 51, 2018 April 1, 2007
I ir hral Dther Compreliensive
Ineome
Unguoted equity shares fully poid up
Investmond in subsidiaries
GMRE Anport Developers Lamiled# 1.z 102 .51 15220 252400 8100
GME Hyderabad Internatiomal Aspost Limited 3.8 1181 238l &,292.10 G288 44 1304 25
Dedhi Imemnntional Airport Lamated 156,80 15680 156,80 935045 Gal620 10,074 %
GME Goa International Alrpon Lirited 1140 11.40 1140 4xi.0m 42000 050
GMR Aimponts (Mauritius) Lmated o,z .02 02 BNt ] 134 ]
Dedhi Dusty Free Services Private Limvited 136 1.36 935 R30ZD £2000 GEd.A4
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limued (DAPS) 87 - - 20030
GMR Ampons Intemnational B L] - - {27900 : &
Total 197.98 154 41 193 40 1732969 16,754 Cf 6,415 07
# Baonus shares isswed durimg tse Tinancial year 17-18 in ibe raviooof 1.1
lovestment inm joint venture
International Airpon of Heraklion, Crete, Concesaion 54 0,15 4.4
Dither investmeni
Investment m GME Awrport Developers Limred on nccound 0.2 (Hix] | 0
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**Financial Assets- Imvestment in Mutual Tands and cemmercial papers

Investments carrbed at fir wvalue through peofit and loss

Particulars Adiouisti

i March 31,2019 Mareh 51, 2018 Apeil 1,2017

I [i4 ir walue the t and lo
1) Inv 4 in I Funds {umquoted)
1CIC] Prudentinl Liquad « Plan Growth 727,075 units {March 31, 2018: 415,597 units; Apnl 1, 2007 137,518 units) of Rs. 100 esch 20,03 16 &6 330
Invesco India Liguid Fund - Growth Plan -Nal wnis (March 31, 2008 2300 units Aped |, 2007: Nil uniis) of Bs. 1000 each = 155 -
DHFL Pramerica Insta Cash Plus fund - Growil- Ml (March 31, 2008 826,312 units, Apnil |, 2017; 142,484 units) of Bs 100 each - 19.94 300
Barada Moncer Liguid Fund Plan A- Grosah-Mil (March 31, 2018 Nil; Apal 1, 20017 1,343 units} of Bs. 1000 each - 025
Tata Money Market Fund Regdar Plan Growihe 122696 units (March 31, 2008: Mal, Apnl 1, 2007 M) of Rs. 1000 each i b - -
UTI Liguid Cash Fund- 21,994 units {March 31, 2008: Mal, Aprid 1, 2017 Niljod Ra. 1000 each 6,71 = -
S 3115 5.55
p Davostments im commorcizl papors (Ungeoted) at Amortised cost
SREI Infrastruciure Finonce Limized- 700 wnits of Rs 500,000 sach (March 11, 2008: Nil, Apedl 1, 2017, Kil) 34.26
Aggregnie book value of unguoted investnenis 8431 i1.15 EE]
#Financial Assets- Investment in debi securities
Iavessiments carcicd at amortsed cost
Amount

Eriienn March31, 2019 March 31,2018 April 1,2017
Tavesiments in Optisnally convertible debenture
27350 (March 31, 2018; Nil) OCD of USD 1,000 each fully paid up in
GMR Airpens Imemmsonal BV {Metherlands) IRR- T4 1 S 42
Taotal investments in Optiorally convertible debenture 166842 =

(e xporve hoes begar imterniomally Bl W)
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Nate 12: Other Minancial assets

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Interest Accrued on bank deposits 018 LR 1.63
Mon Trede Recetvables- Considered good[net of provision for

doubtful debts (March 31, 201%: 0.34 crores ((March 31, 2008: Mil; 26,64 65.31 21.81
April 1, 2017: Nil}] {Refer note 40)

Investment in share application money# 17.36 -
Imterest Accrued om investment 0.03 -
Total 44.21 65.32 1144
# Incluwdes -

(i) Application Money paid 1o the GMR Airports International B.V amounting to Euro 879,430 (INR 7.35 crore) for which shares are yet to be alloted.
(i} Application Money paid 1o the GMR Goa [nternational Airport Limited amounting to INR. 10 crore for which shaves have been alloted on May 3, 2019,

MNote L3: Other non financial assets

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Prepaid Expenses 2.28 1.94 1.60
Advance other than Capital Advance:
Advance (o employees 1.7 0.22 079
Advance to suppliers: 445
Others - 0,05 -
Related parties (Reler Nole 40) 01 o1 -
Balance with government authoritics .01 (.00 005
(iher Recoverable
Others AR5 550 -
Related parties (Refer Noete 40) .08 .
Total 704 8.12 6,89

(The sprrge dras heen intensionally efl Mlank)
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Mates ra standaline M ial Far the vonr cnsded Marchk 310, 2019
(AN smuunt i Rupees crures sxcopl fsr share dats unless staied sdhersised

Mobe 15: Deferred tax;

Balamer sheer Profit & Lecs

March 31, 200%  Murch 31, 308 April |, B00T  March 31, J0%  March 31, 201K
Dreferred tax Bahility
oa pocouni of fair vatemion of invesimenis [T H oz LiECS - A0}
o ccount of emenseement defined beachil plass L& [iles - .18} ik
U aceonni ol wplrent fees heing smomized st efliszlive et sethod (ELR'. - = 1XS - {385y
Coree defeered tax lability (1] (LA g 150 {0.1E} (1855
Deferred inx asset
Fiued sssct: lagae ol differencs b tan disprecision and gy ian [ iy charped Tor fhe finamcial sgperting [ %13 [N L) Lilend LX) LN b3
Irnpace alexpenditine eharped o e of prafil paal kes but allowed for lan purposes on payement hasis Li% ar | nas ILETY
Paavigion o sandanl asscl .53 Bl LT 154 .14
Pruvision far douhifial debis and mheances 1T - 1.7 -
Provision on buginess e B = REE5 =
- Impae) dus 1o seousting of fenn loas under IR - 277 = {2.77)
Graas deferred lax ssseis (111 T104 240 40 364 {108
et deferrod tan assefliabiling [B-A} T8 236 [ NE] L 3T

eecenciliatinns of delirrod tay labilitiosasseds(nel)

March 31, 2019

March 51, 2014

Opening balanee Ik [NE]
Tex incomaf{xpense) during the yoar recognisod in saioment of prafit or less 966 e
T empense during e year recognised im OC1 016 o}
Cloging halance TR 136
The Compomy adlicts tax akeels sl Habaliies iF sl only a0 b o legally cafnresabls ght o s o cimenl B aveets sl curenl 12 lisbilitics o the dofemed fax pacts sml defared fax liabilstios ol b0 monme faxes laviod by tho same
lax methanLy.
Medp 154, Deferred fax lin i
Balanee sheel Proft & Lass

March 31,2019 March 21, 2018 April 1, 2007 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2014
Deelereed tas lahiBy
on aceounl of fr valualion of invesinoenis 313740 3,151, 310758 A5.581 4411
Grusy deferred fax Babsllity 1237.62 J.151,79 2, 007.68 A5.H1 4401
Hecanclliatioms of deferved tax linbililfes' ease s mel)

March 31, 2019 Morch 31, 2008
Cipening halanco 305179 10768
Tax incomedexponse) durning ihe yes recugnisod in simemee of predi or less. HE.H3 44,11
Clasing balance 3237.462 LI51,79

{Thia g fhaas Sievw dmtendinmuily doft bt




GMR Airports Limited
CIN U65999KA1992P LCO3T455

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019
(All amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Mote 16: Trade Payable

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Trade Payvable
Due to Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
Trade Payable-Related Party (Refer note 40) 524 D45 749
Others 2744 17.46 483
Total 3268 26.91 12.32
Mote 17: Debt Securities al Amortised cost
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Unsecured

Mon convertible debentures (NCID)- 205,000 debentures ol Rs
100,000 cach at IRR 15% (March 31, 2008 Nil; April 1, 2017;

Mil) (refer note 50) 2,225,122 - =
Total gross (A) 2,225.12 = T
Debt securities in India 2,225.12 = Z
Debt securities outside India - - =
Total (B) 2,225.22 - -

The Company is required to repay NCD amounting to Rs 873.94 in two tranches during the FY 2019-20. First tranche smounting to Rs.600
crores inclusive of interest Ks 7203 crores on 30 June, 2019 and Second tranche amounting to Rs. 400 crores inclusive of interest Rs,
34.03 crores on August 14, 2019,

Note 18: Borrowings al amortised cost

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Secured
Indian Rupee loan from banks [Refer pote (a)] - &
Unsecured
Loans [rom related parties (Refer note (B) and note 407 -
Others

393.80

330.43 -

Total gross - 330.43 393.86

{a) Rupee term loan- Nil {March 31, 2018- Nil; April 1, 2017- Rs, 405 crores) from Axis Bank carries interest at Base plus agreeed spread,
which is subject lo reset at the end of agreed interval. The interest rate during the year ranging from Nil (March 31, 2018: 10.20% io
10 10% poa.; April 1,2017: 10.25% to 10.20% p.a.). The 76% of the principal loan amount is repayable in 13 quarlerly equal instalments as
per the repayment schedule starting from March 2017 and ending in Seplember 30, 2020, During the previous year (fnancial year 2017-
18). the Company has repaid the entire outstanding loan,

{b) During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Company has taken a loan of Rs. 430 crores from its holding Comparny, carrying
an interest of 10,10% p.a, The loan is to be repaid with a bullet repayment on September 2023; with an option for the holding Company 1o
recall the loan, either entirely or in part after 3 years ftom the date of first disbursement, i.e., September 2017, The option to recall the loan
may be exercised by the holding Company on quarterly interval after the end of 3 years and by giving 3 months' notice to the Company or
either Company may opt for voluntary repayment of part of the loan. The Company has repaid Rs. 99,57 crores out of the said loan during
the financial year ended March 31, 2018, The remaining loan was repaid in the current financial vear.




GMR Airports Limited
CIN U65999 KA 1992PLCO3IT455

Motes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
{All amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Mote 19: Other financial liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Interest accrued but not due from bank - - 384
Capital creditors 0.12 015 -
Financial guarantee {refer note 400 0.22 .36 .53
Mon Trade Payables 1.17 0.95 6.06

Total 1.51 1.46 [0.43

Note 20: Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 April 1, 2017

Provision for employee benefits

Leave encashment B.48 6.17 393
Gratuity [refer note 38 (ii) (b)] .46 0.&1 048
Superannuation 0.11 010 0.07

Provision for Contingenl assets [refer note 49(a)] 6.81 .40 0.13

Total 15.56 TA8 4.61

Mote 21: Other non-financial liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Statutory Dues Payahle

Service Tax Payable - - 064
Goods and Services Tax Payable 5.30 11.39 -
Withholding Tax Payvable 2474 4838 229
Provident Fund Payablc 0.38 034 018
Others LXI]] .01 0.00
Contract Liabilities
Advance received from customer** - 098 -
Deferred / uncamed revenue®* 048 046 030
Total 34,31 18.06 34l

*Advance received from customers and deferred/unearned revenue as at March 31, 2019 represents ‘contract liabilities' due to adoption of Ind AS

115:

{The space fas been intentionally leff Blank)




EeSEH Adrparis Ll

CIN IRSTHRE A IMTLOEITERS

Muig e wasdalons adncial plabemioiis e e prar eidod Sharch 1, 208
anpriel n Rl dat dhurs dud ik diaiod plhorwiie

Muts 23 Eqelry dhars capirad

Beinth of sunberiod, iveck dula il and el i shece ol Acal March AL WIS Acal March 11, IBIR As an Aprd |, 207

Aushiariord sboers Cagutsl Amvsum Armerani Ampwri

B ATKLDUEL B R FI, 2090 ¢ wwad Agedd 0, Inj? iy Sk al Ba 195 wmly [EECIE b EELTE L AT EELTEST T

BT T e 50, AR ) 1 B 00 wred Al 1, 101 72 V600038 Won 4 pivalsiive Uonnpulsiy Corvemible Padorore: Sharm of Bs, 1000 ok TP 000 [LELIELE L] [LELIE R
M0 B 0.0, B30 10000800008

ab Fermeairiphis ssacten] to pquily 2 brrey

W Commpuny Bas oy i ¢l ul pily ahari b e o pod walis ol B 10pa sy, Eails baddon o qapity b o svdidis ke oiat v oy shae, Tl Ui iy declones el s dhviborl m bk sipocs Thrimﬂndpurtwulhriw!.hnl-flhmhrp:nhc!l-llrmvullﬁlmm

it anping Annusl Cioneral Mrciing. b the evem of ligasdanon ol 1he Oy, the haliers o the oguin thuncs wauld be craiied inancene mrmaiving s af b Cergung, sl duribstion o all | s, T - 4o iy B o gty s bk by

B aharchofikr.

) FwrenHighty situched te preferomee share

T earumvalat e Compularily Costeitie Parili pssary Profoee o Sharcs Chnt A{Cliai A CCPE)

T Comnpury bad maed 1781408 o opakay prokanod saans Cliss A 10k A CUPShal e, L0 sah fallppaid ap o o proveins &f R, 280507 sl Bs 3050098 por shase N 2298 580 Chais h COPS (i Toimae's andl 230 318 Clais A OCPS

ﬁcﬂdhrk‘rmmhf"hummammhuﬂﬂuﬂﬂmhpi Thecas prefercees dancheddem da ot arg any vidlag aighe. Bach Pirst Tiswhs sod Sogond Tosschie of Class & DO e b by spiopined o 880 oqubiy sianes o B 160 ool B3, 4927 pay e iy sl
sequerinely. o or e April & 1015 b the cve of liquideies of fhe Cronparsy, Class & CCPS will shuays alwe priority ever cquiry shoncs i he pynscs of capial. pami pa with Cbs 10T (Refer oo 30 s 51}

) Mam cormah thharit bl Mee-Fanticg Bsean T nummmn-n:tm
1I|mwlum-ﬁllﬂ-u3\3.tu-- i pubaniy b e prefteeros o Clas 1 Cla 1 COPSpal 1000 cach, G 11 CLPS camy puricratisl dividenad @ @ 00003 . Lack Class 1 CLTS abal be craicd simakasoadly s ©c e o
w0 CUPE of Clas N W a ride 1o b ol i m I h ul.mldnd" Thec olders do o have any

Li W ol ol inpaiha i of O Comtipuianty, Tl & PR 908 harre ity orver ity whied e i) of copial pan pezon with Cleee B OTF3 (B i 0asd 811

Vi v of St e i il Asigait 1), D01 didoral mte beviorn (ke Comtguairy, QMR ik Lizsited, Mlsag S [l i | Loreaial, Siarvdord Charicrod Fervale Fouity aursus b 1 Limscd, 1 Faencial - 008 Lo Inda Cangrosic Opporiieine Fuad |
W dmmdiaed, 188 Firuraial Trimsd Congosy Frives Lissed and Dk i ©apeal Adviions LLP e et CUTF A aes damanied iots 901001 e ol qaiy slsies st edbive O7FS Bowire cooiriod 8 % B84 TRAM me of copeiy shiess, o Movrmber 8, 2618 (lefe poie 500 311

i T o cupiey nares g a1 g Ihvwbag il a1 Wb cind o e Crpparing pebed,
Fardedar s ar Margh FI 209 A3t Mareh A1, 1008 s an Aqurtl 1 0T
e ol slemey B leirmch Disalsherri R, In cranns Bio of sl R, In creres
Erpaily Shane ol e begimag of pored NLETES R SLTE b} FLATCTITRLE ) 1HLET BETTTURTN i b
fukk
Limiay Sl MH nlﬂ‘ ugm e sk §i ﬂw] 'H'Tﬂ & a & =
Loty hay i e pud of peris] MRS RN N (EILE] 13, L 13087 2308 00 A% SHIAT
A1 b bbby bbb Cormfrans’ wedd e sababdlati
hs ar Margh 31, 2019 s ot el 1, 0T
Name af fur darevabier
B, shiry %ol Ll o o ibires %ol inike gl Faais of M claw
A efrastraciry |imiid, Heldieg Corspary A ATT ErET FETETORT AR 400 B, AN
g et b AT ek 10, 2008 S99, 599 and Apel 00, 36T ;08050 MM oy sharos of s V- cach
TR Tnfiew Servbies irmiied dfaraveriy knsn is GMB EEE Ifrs Saetors Ll el sulisbdiany
234 AL (M 31, 201 NGl Aped | 2807 Hil of B, |0 cach 1148 ALNET b £ ; 7 .
Tatal [ETE [T [T AL o W15
i [Drinih of viarrdsadnn hakiing mere tkan 3% shares in the {Compsay
e ot il alarolnk kg ai Mareh M, W19 g an Margh }1, 3K Ay st il |, 3017
sl ahages 5% of Babdiag in 1l pias ¥ ol the il ! kol b o e hass
=-mmnumm|—muwurmmp a8 A AT 14 5 T A1 T [T
d L il ol 23804805 b £ 3 i L
15:_! 2048 BEAS LT 4O I L5 R i BT 135
o seni C [& Particpatary Sheare Clam A
Jw sk Mareh ¥, 20K hwal Apari] 1, 2817
Farticelira P, ool shares (W1, D 1 1 SN[ [ —
EiHen Cem i Cosapolsmniy Comidbie 1 Frlrrec: Share (s A e bopimay of paond AT AR i RL ] NP3 480 TAIE
Al
{apvervivr during iks proed
Eurrvoriyed choriey v par bt oy 41) AN A FLREAL . r . .
e shaee o0 e v o] g : 5 (ERTET] [EFT] IR ITIE
B Hi Bas Cumalsing Comgulorily Casieribis Fariic pasery Profaencs S Clos 4
Kt Mareh 1 300 ot Mareh X1 30K o ul April 1. E117
Fanthialany Mo o Slrares hebd o Mlebding by the Clom B of Shoorvs bl %% Holding o ot Hrares bl % ol in ke £'la
Magousnis SBI ndaanar Ivennmes Liviad . . 21088 LAl 1A ol his
St i € b rborod Frovote Faaite | st 1] Lissded - - AL 25k ¥,34 ENO LR
IS Pl naial - 190 Lror Do 4 stpos i Uipgmtins s Fornd | Lriind - - 185470 1A 13340 18"
Toasl » - il S A

W A per reconh of e Conpany. inchediag sx ey of sk’ manbs aed ocher declanans reomed Do dhaorholden aganling herfic] e, e dhaer dunholding repreiesn 5ol gl snl bepeliial senershige f fhases

Ay spane e berwn inbrashmally fel? Ddasls




GME Alrpors Limized
CIN U65998 KA 1M PLOUN 455

Notes do standalong financisl siztements For the yesr ended March 31, 2%
LAl amaunt In Rupers ereres exeepl for share data unless sinted ofherwise)

15z Other eqaity
Fartbeulars Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2618
1y Equily component of comvertible preference shiare
Tipening halance e N E 31305
Cosveried darmg the year [¥TR.15) .
Net Balance as at year end = EFER
1) Seeurity Premivm reserve
Oipening balarce 1LIBL65 L IDAS
At ErnnsBerredrutdteed during the vest (netd (refer nolg 50 (60437 .
Mel Balanee as al year end S00.ER J 0465
fiii} Special Reserve U5 45-1C of RBI
Dpening halase: H6.07 27
Amount iransfamed during the year & 4380
Nt Balance as al year end [ 6,07
i) Capital Keserve
Opening balasce .23 0.3
Aot sransferred durlng the yes . .
el Balanee as af year end !£ 0,23
v Retaiked chrmingd
Dipening halscs Al0.38 2IR.6E
Adid: Ned prolia for the year (T4RLY Ii547
Leess: Transfor ko speciad resoree w45 [T of RR] Act - 43,50
Less: Dividand on Class & and Clas B CUPS - JUT]
Less: DHwidend Disreibutsom e oo Clis A and Cless B OCPS - {000y
Adld: Re-meassrement {lessesl gains on dufined benofit plans inet of ax) tl].-lgz 03
Net balance of Retained earmings 33517 EILET]
vl) Uther Comprehessive Ineome
Gain on equily instremenis designated ol FYOCT for the wear
Opaning balsnce 11,504.21 RG]
Meluement during the year 31044 15041
Inconse 1ax ispact (H5.H3) (48115
Totad 11,547.82 1030421
Tetal reserve aml pwrplus (et} 12,4457 13,250 60
Matire asd pirpess of Feserve
Securitics promiom resene
Securilies prenaium reserve is used 1o record the premium received on isue ol shares. The reserve can be wtifesed ondy Tor limsted pumpoess such m issumce of Bosos ddores =8 accordancs with the
peavisions of the Companies A, X115,
FY RO equity investments
The Comspany has clecied 1@ recognise changes in the G valee of cenain invesiments n equily securiics in etber camprehensive income. These changes arc accumulaied within the FYOCT equity
investmenis reserve within oguity. The Company iansfers amounts from this reseree o e are denrengniied
Capitsl Reserve
The Crosspany recegsdees prolis or kes an purchase, sale, issuc or cancellation of the Company™s nwn cguity insirumenis w capital reserve.
Special Reserve
The Cowspany, beng reg | as non-banking [i d instilution, is regaired Lo ramsior 1% ol net praliss (o ipecial resarv in soorknce wilh Section £3510 of RBI Acs The sael rescree can be used

miyﬁr&pupmnxmybt:peclﬁntbrlh. hank fram tinee bo fime. In the ahsersee of profit for the year onded March 21, 2019; no transfer to specal reserve has been made during the year.

(T v deean Bt dnpvenntvonsally leflh k]



GMR Airports Limited
CIN Us5999KA1992PLCO3T7455

Motes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{All amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Mote 24; Interest Income

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

On financial assets
measured at Amortised

On financial assets
measured at Amortised

cost cost
Interest on loan to related partics (Refer note 400 7.11 kel
Interest income from Investments
Optionally convertible debentures 62.48 -
Interest on deposits with Banks 2.69 6.27
Total 72.28 0.51
Note 25: Dividend Income
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Dividend from group companies {Refer note 40) 117.51 21249
Taotal 117.51 21249

Mote 26: Revenoe from contracts with customers

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Consultancy revenue T8.58 116.56
Aviation Academy revenue 9.30 .04
Total §7.88 122.20
MNote:
(i) Company earns revenue from customer contracts March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Within India 86.52 121.76
Cutside India 1.36 0.44
87.58 122.20
(ii) Timing of rendering of services: March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
service rendered at a point in time
service rendered over a point of time 87.88 122.20
B7.58 122.20
(iii) Set below is the revenue recognised from: March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Amount included in contract liabilities al the beginning of the vear 1.44 0.30
Performance obligation satisified in previous years - =
1.44 0.30
Mote 27: Met gain/ (loss) on fair value changh‘
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{A) Net gaind/ (loss) on Tinancial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on sale of mutual funds (including fair valuation change) 5.18 0,20
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 5.18 6,20
Fair Value changes:
-Realised 5.19 6.14
-Linrealised {0.01) 0.06
Total Met (loss)/ gain on fair value changes 5.18 6.20




GMR Airports Limited
CIN UsS999KA 1992PLCO3T455

Motes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Mote 28: Other Income

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Mizeellaneous income 0.05 -

Interest income on financial asset measored at amortised cost

Financial guaraniee 0.14 0.17

Security deposit 0.19 (.08
Total 0.38 0,25

Mote 29: Finance Costs®

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
On financial assets On financial assets
measured at Amortised | measured at Amortised
cost cost

Debt Securities 200.76 -
Borrowings (other than debt) 18.08 i0.57
Others 0.02 0.05
Total 218.86 30.62

Note 30: Fees and commission expense®

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Brokerage fees 0.26 0.28

Bank Charges 4.77 0.01

5.03 0.29

* Above expenses are nel of allocation/recovery done.,

Note 31: Employee Benefits Expenses *

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries and wages 18.75 10.27
Contribution to provident and other funds 4.05 2.51
Gratuity [refer note 38 (if)(b)] 052 I.08
Staft welfare expenses .86 .13
Total 24.18 13.99

MNote 32: Depreciation expense®

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 14)

Less: Transler! Allocation to subsidiaries
Total

3.21 3.02
(2.29) i2.20)
0.92 0.82

(The space has been intentionally left blank)




GMR Airports Limited
CIN Us5S999K A 1992 PLCOAT45ES

Motes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Al amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Maote 33 Other expenses®

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Legal and professional fecs 41.46 23,74
Travelling and conveyance 4.95 129
Lease Rent 1.95 0.41
Bidding Expenscs 0.65 0.0
Repair & Maintenance others 041 0.26
Rates and taxes 1.05 .04
Communication cost 034 007
Charities & Donations 383 0.67
CER Expenditure (refer note A) 0.61 1.03
Remuneration to auditer (refer note B) T.64 0.24
Directors silting lees .14 013
Traimng Expenses 2,63 201
Conlingeni provision against standard assets 641 0.27
Provision for doubtiul debts and loans 5.84 :
Bad debis written of T - 0.03
Exchange differences {nct) DE.03 002
Logo fees 0.54 041
Electricity and water charges 0.11 15
Miscellancous expenses 112 .01
Total 178.71 34,56

* Above expenses arg net of allocation’ recovery done

MNote A: Remuneration to Auditor®*

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

As auditor
Statutory awdil of Company 016 016
Limited Reviews 0.03 .03

In other capacity
Mher services (including certification charges) 743 0.04
Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 (0,4

T 0.24

Mote B: Details of CSR expenditure:

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year
b} Amount spent during the vear ending on March 31, 2019;

i} Construction/acquisition of any asset
it} Cn purpenses other than (i) above

¢} Amount spent during the vear ending on March 31, 2018:

i} Construction/acquisition of any assel
i) Chn purposes other than (i) above

Note 34: Exceptional item

.61
In cash

.61
In cash

1.03

1.03
Yet to be paid in cash

Yet to be paid in cash

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Lean repayment charges (Refer note 57)

3231

3231

{The spave has been intentionally lefi blank}



GMR Airports Limited

CIN UnS990 KA 199IP LCOAT4SS

Nodes to standabone financial siatements for the vear eaded March 31, 209
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Note 35: Tax Expenses
The major componznts of income tax expense for the period ended  March 31, 2009 and 2018 are
Particudurs March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current income tax:
Cusrens income 1ax chargs A48
Adjusiments in respect of current incoms: ax of previons year
Deferred tax:
Relating 1o arigination aml reversal of temporary differences {69.66) (.19
Ingomie tax expense reporied in the stnlement of profit or boss {&.66) 129
OCI Section
Deferred tax rekated to Bens recognised in OCT during the year: Mureh 31, 219 March 31, 2008
Re-measurement (bossesy gain an defined benefit pluns (i 1y Wiz
Gnin on equity instnemenis designated al FVOCT for the year (net) 85,83 #.11
Imcome tax churged to OO0 A5.67 2413
Reconciliation of tnx expense and the aceounting profit multiplied by India®s domestic fax rave for Mareh 31, 2009 and March 31, 2018:

Murch 31, 2015 Mareh 31, 2018
Accounting profit before tax {144.4T) 21776
Tax at the upplicable lax rate of 29, 12% (March 31, 2018 © 34,608%) (42.07) 75146
Tax effect of ineme tit arg pol taxable in determming taxable profit: {34.48) 173.54)
Income exenpt under Income tax

ax Gllect ol gpenses that 2 d T i

Donstions 1.9 0.1
Ot nem-deductihle expenses 559 007
Tax expenie (GY.66) .19
Ineome tax expense recarded in the specinl purpase statement of profit and loss (6066} 119

{The space hax baen foft blamk (arenriouallvi
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Mote 36: Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)

The disaggregation of changes to OCT by each 1ype of reserve in equity is shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Re-messurement gain (losses) on defined benefit plans {L56) 0.05
Income tox cffect .16 (0.02)
Ciain on equity imstruments designated at FVOCT for the year (net) 31944 18041
Inscome tax impact {B5.83) {dd, 1 1]
Net Impact 243.21 235,33

Mote 37: (Loss)' Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (loss)profit for the year atiributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares

ounstanding during the year.

Diilured EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (lossWprofit antributable to equity holder (afler adjusting for dividend on the convestible preference shares)
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on

conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares,
The following refleets the ineome and share datn used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Prafit atributable 1o equity holders for basic and diluted eamings: {(A) (T4.R1) 21547

Weighicd averape munber of equity shares wsed for compuling boss/carming per 7338 35.09

share

Convertible preference shares - Fin.90

Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for basie/ diluted EPS (B) Ti.34 6599

Basic earning per sharc (A/B) {1.02) i
Diluted earning per share (A'B) {1.02) 3

{This space has been infentinonally fefl hlank)
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38. Retirement and other employee benefiis
Employee benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Benefits (contribution to):
Emplover’s contribution to Superannuation fund 1.58 1.00
ii} Defined Benefit Plan
a) Provident and other funds
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Benefits (contribution to):
Emplover's contribution to Provident and other fund’s 2.47 1.51

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund which is administered by the trustees. The rules of the
Company's provident fund administered by a trust, require that if the board of the trustees are unable to pay interest at
the rate declared by the government under para 60 of the Emplovees provident fund scheme, 1972 for the reason that
the return on investment is less for any other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by the company making
interest shortfall a defined benefit plan, Accordingly, the company has obtained actuarial valuation and based on the
below provided assumption there is no deficiency at the balance sheet date. Hence, the liability is restricted towards
monthly contributions only.

As per the requirement of Ind AS 19 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, benefits involving employer
established provident funds, which require interest shortfalls to be re-compensated, are to be considered as defined
benefit plans. Based on the actuarial valuation and on the assumptions provided below there is no cumulative short-fall
which has been provided in the financial statements.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Plan assets at the year end, at fair value ** 148.09 111.59 94.27
Present value of benefit obligation at year end (148.09) 111.59 04.27

Met (liability) recognized in the balance sheet = - =

Assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of the interest rate guarantee under the Deterministic
Approach:

Particulars As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018 As at April 01, 2017
Discount rate 7.55% 7.60% T.10%
Fund rate 0.30% 9.30% 9.50%

8.65% for first year and 80.60%
PFO rate there afier 8.55% for the next one vear | 8.60% for the next one year
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 3%

Mortality

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
{modified)UIT*

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
{modified)Ult *

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
{modified)Ult *

*As published by IRDA and adopted as Standard Mortality Table as recommended by Institute of Actuaries of India

effective April 1, 2013.
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** The above disclosures are inclusive of those pertaining to Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as

Delhi International Airport Private Limited), a subsidiary of the Company, as the fund is common.

b) Gratuity expense

Grratuity liability is a defined benefit plan which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance Corporation of
India and Liability (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial vear. Every employee who has completed five yvears or
more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days’ salary (based on last drawn basic salary) for each completed

year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the standalone statement of profit

or loss/OCI and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans/obligations:

Met employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the vear ended March 31, 2019:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Current Service Cost .46 0.20

Net Interest Cost 0.05 (0.03)

Past Service Cost - 0.91

Met benefit expense 0.52 1.08
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year ended March 31, 2019:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Actuarial loss due to DBO experience .60 0.08

Actuarial {gain)/loss due to DBO financial - (0.12)

assumption changes .

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during the year .60 (0.04)

Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount (0.04) (0.01)

ratc

Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in OCI 0.56 {0.03)
Balance Sheet

Particulars Mareh 31, 2019 March 31,2018 | April 01,2017

Defined benefit obligation (3.75) (4.46) (2.21)

Fair value of plan assets 3.29 3.55 1.73

Benefit liability (0.46) (0.81) (0.48)

{The space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars
As at As ai As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01,2017
Opening defined benefit obligation 4.36 221 |46
Interest cost 0.31 0.15 0.10
Current service cost 0.46 0.20 0.12
Past service cost 0.91 -
Acquisition cost {1.38) 1.06 0.55
Benefits paid (including transfer) {0.60Y (0.13) {0.21)
Actuarial losses on obligation-experience 0.60 (0.04) 0.19
Closing defined benefit obligation 3.75 4.36 2.21
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Opening fair value of plan assets 3.55 1.73 1,17
Acguisition adjustment {1.38) (0.03) -
Contributions by emplover 1.42 1.80 0.68
Benefits paid (including transfer) {0.60) {0.13) (0.21)
Interest income on plan assets 0.25 0.18 0.11
Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than (0.02)
discount rate 0.05 0.01
Closing fair value of plan assets 3.29 3.55 1.73

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 1.4, crore to gratuity fund during the year ended on March 31, 2020 (March
31,2019: Rs. 1.8,0 crore, April 01, 2017: Rs. 0.68 crores)

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets is as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018 | April 01, 2017
(Vo) (%e) (Vo)
Investments with Insurer Managed Funds 100% 1 00%% 1 00%
Experience adjustments for the current and previous four years are as follows:

Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Defined benefit obligation (3.75) {4.36) (2.21) (1.46) (127}

Plan assets 3.29 3.55 1.73 .20 1.25

Funded status (0.46) (0.81) (0.48) (0.26) {1.07)

Experience gain / (loss)

adjustment on plan liabilities 0.60 (0L08) (0.09) {0.15) 0.03

Experience gain / (loss)

adjustment on plan assets 0.02 (0.01)

Actuarial loss due to change

in financial assumptions (0.11)
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 April 01, 2017
Discount rate (in %) 7.60% 7.60% T.10%
Salary Escalation (in %) 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.60% 7.60% 7.80%
Adtrition rate (in %) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Assumptions Discount rate
Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase {0.21) (0.27)
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease 0.24 0.30
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Assumptions Future Salary Increase
Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase 0.16 0.24
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease {D.18) (0.23)
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Assumptions Attrition rate
Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase 48 413
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease (0.04) ©.04)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting peried. The average
duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10 years (March 31, 2018:10 vears),

{The space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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39, Commitments and Contingencies

{i) Leases

Company as lessee:
Assets taken on operating Lease
The Company has taken office space under cancellable operating lease arrangements. There are no sub leases.

The lease expenses (including lease on equipment taken on hire) pertaining of the company during the year
amounted to Rs 1.95 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs. 0.41 crores).

(ii} Contingent liabilities not provided for

Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(2)

(h)

)

The Company has given corporate guarantee to Punjab National Bank for issuing counter guarantee of Rs. 300
crores (March 31, 2018: Rs. 300 Crores, April 01, 2017: Rs. 300 crores ) in respect of Delhi International Airport
Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited).

The Company has given corporate guarantee to Yes Bank for issuing term loan of Rs 100 Crores (March 31, 2018;
Rs. 100 Crores, April 01, 2017: Rs. 100 crores ) in respect of GMR Airport Developers Limited.

During the year, the Company has given bid bond guarantee of Rs. 11.60 Crores (March 31, 2018: 12.08 crores,
April 01, 2017: Nil) to Bhogapuram International Airport Corporation Limited in respect of bidding for
Bhogapuram Airport.

During the year, the Company has given bid bond guarantee of Rs. 17.00 Crores (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 01,
2017: Nil) in respect of bidding for Lucknow Airport.

During the year, the Company has given bid bond guarantee of Rs. 16.00 Crores (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 01,
2017: Nil) in respect of bidding for Mangalore Airport.

During the year, the Company has given bid bond guarantee of Rs. 8.00 Crores (March 31, 2018: Mil, April 01,
2017: Nil} in respect of bidding for Thiruvananthapuram Airport.

During the vear, the Company has given bid bond guarantee of Rs. 17.00 Crores (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 01,
2017: Nil) in respect of bidding for Ahmedabad Airport.

During the year, the Company has given bid bond guarantee of Rs. 15.00 Crores (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 01,
2017: Nil}) in respect of bidding for Guwahati Airport.

During the year, the Company has given bid bond guarantee of Rs. 18.00 Crores (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 01,
2017: Mil) in respect of bidding for Jaipur Airport.

During the year, the Company has given bid bond guarantee of Rs. 16.85 Crores (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 01,
2017: Nil) in respect of bidding for Nagpur Airport.

(The space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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(k)  The following long term investments have been freeze / pledged / secured by the Company towards borrowing of
the Group Companies:
As at As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Loy Nekic eqi:; Amount Eqﬂn;i:: Amount :;qﬂll;i?; Amount
Shares (Rs) shares (Rs) shares (Rs)
Delhi  International  Adrport
Limited (formerly known as %
Delhi International  Airport - - 24.50 20461 24,50 294.61
Private Limited))
Bl Dty Fros dervicse 0.95 66.67 1.36 95.24 1.36 95.24
Private Limited
?.MB Goa International Airport 5.81 58.14 291 29.01 - -
Amited
Delhi Airport Parking Services - =
Private Limited s _— ) )
GMR Hyderabad International ) ) ) _
Airport Limited 16.41 164.12

{I) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated
28th February, 2019. As a matter of caution, the company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date
of the SC order, The company will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

{m) During the financial year 2017-2018; bank fixed deposits amounting to Rs 90 crores (April 01, 2017: Rs. 90 crores)

pledged with bank as a security for the credit facility availed by the Welfare Trust for GMR Group Employees has

been matured and the lien has been removed.

(n) During the financial year 2017-2018, bank fixed deposits amounting to Rs 3.98 crores (April 01, 2017: Rs. 3.98

crores) pledged with Axis Bank against DSRA requirement of term loan facility has been matured and lien has been

removed.

{0) During the financial year 2017-2018, bank fixed deposits of Rs. 1.21 crores (March 31, 2017: Rs. |1.20 crores)

have been pledged as cash margin with IDFC Bank.

Income tax matters

a) Company had received an order under section 143(3) for the Assessment year 2014-2015 relating to disallowance
under section 14A with respect to expenditure incurred for eaming the exempted income amounting to Rs. 6,77
crores. The Company filed an appeal before CIT (appeals) against the said order but same has been dismissed by
CIT (appeals). The company has further filed appeal in ITAT against said order which is pending for hearing.

Based on the legal opinion, the management is of the view that there is no requirement of any provision to be made
in the standalone financial statements,

b)  During the year the Company has received assessment order passed by Assessing Officer (the AQ) wherein the AD
has made disallowances for AY 2016-17 amounting to Rs. 54.80 crores which consist of disallowance of Rs. 33.96
crores. under section 36(1)(iii) on axis bank term loan of Rs. 380 crores.; addition of Rs. 18.70 crores under section
l4A by applying Rule 8D; Disallowance of deduction under section B0G of CSR Expenses amounting to Rs. 0.84
crores.; addition of Rs. 1.3 crores. Under section 37 of the Income Tax Act, 2013 for expenses pertaining to fund
raising activities. The Company filed an appeal before CIT (appeals) against the said order which is pending for
hearing.

Based on the legal opinion, the management is of the view that there is no requirement of any provision to be made
in the standalone financial statements.
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iv) Capital and Other Commitments:

(a) There are no capital commitments outstanding as at March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018; Nil, April 01, 2017;
Nil}.

(b) Other commitments

vi.

Bank fixed deposits of Rs, 11.95 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs. 1.2] crores) have been pledged as cash
margin with IDFC Bank.

Rs. 874 crores of principal repayment to NCD holders and interest of Rs. 126 crores during the financial
year 2019-2020 by ensuring 15% IRR.

The Company is required to pay Rs.0.01 crore per vear to Catalyst Trustee for acting as NCD Trustee.

As at March 31, 2018; the Company was required to pay Rs 2,306,000 (Rs. 1,431,000 to CARE and
875,000 to CRISIL) as annual surveillance fee each year (April 01, 2017: Rs 1,250,000) for its rating in
relation to bank facilities and Bond issue.

The Company has entered into the concession agreement with State of Greece and TERNA (Local
construction and energy conglomerate) for the purpose of design, construction, financing, operation,
maintenance and exploitation of International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA. Per the
agreement, the Company is required to invest ~Euro 70.2 mn.

Company has separately executed Sponsor support Agreement in favor of lenders of GMR Goa
International Airport Limited (*GGIAL") for securing debt facility of GGIAL, with following
undertakings:-

a) Company undertakes to meet any shortfall in debt servicing up to 2 years of the actual Commencement
of Development (*COD") and thereafter lenders shall review the requirement for continuation of such
undertaking 3 months prior to the date of expiry of the undertaking, If based on the review, the
Company may be required to extend the undertaking for additional period of 2 years, then it shall do
s0 within a period of 15 days of such review else the entire rupee term loan becomes payable by the
Company ({sponsors) and the borrowers, i.e.., GGIAL on a joint & several basis. As at March 31,
201%; Development has not yet been completed.

b} To bring (either on its own or through third parties) funds to meet the differential between the
Termination Payment received as per the provisions of the Concession Agreement in the event of
termination and outstanding debt, with respect to the Lenders under the Financing Documents.

¢} To retain Management Control of the borrower company (GGIAL) during the tenure of the Facility.
The Company, being the sponsor shall, directly or indirectly, maintain a shareholding of not Less than
51% of the equity shares of the GGIAL during the tenor of the Facility.

d)  To fund any increase in Project Cost through equity/unsecured loans; if any.

e)  Any unsecured loans of the GGIAL from Promoter/Company/ GMR. Group Company Concemns shall
be subordinate, and any interest or principal payment will not be paid during the tenor of the Facility
unless the Restricted Payment Test is satisfied. Subordinate debt should carry ROI which shall be
lower than the prevailing ROI for the term loan.

f)  Inthe event of invocation of Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 62 crore Company to infuse funds
to that extent,

2} To keep minimum of 23% of the equity stake of the GGIAL free of any encumbrance/negative lien,
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40. Related party disclosures

Name of related parties and related party relationship:-

a) Names of Related parties and deseription of relationship:

Ultimate Holding Company

GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Holding Company

GMR Infrastructure Limited

Subsidiaries and Step-down Subsidiaries

Delhi International Airport Limited (Formerly known as Delhi
International Airport Private Limited)

Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited®

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

GMR Airport Developers Limited

GADL (Mauritius) Limited®

GADL International Limited®

GMR Airports (Mauritius) Lid.

GMR Goa International Airport Limited

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

Hyderabad Duty Free Retail Limited'

GMR Aero Technic Limited®

GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited*

GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (Formerly known as GMR
Hotels And Resorts Limited)'!

GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited*

GMR Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution Limited*
GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited?

Hyderabad Airport Security Services Limited*

GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo And Logistics Private Limited
{formerly known as Hyderabad Menzies Air Cargo Private
Limited)*

Asia Pacific Flight Training Academy Limited (Cease to be
Subsidiary w.e.f. March 01,2019}

GMR Logistics Park Private Limited

GMR Airports International B.V (became subsidiary we.f.
April 28, 2018

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited (DAPS
became indirect subsidiary of GAL w.e.f October 30, 2018)

Joint Venture Company

| Imternational Airport of International Airport Of
| Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA

{w.e.f. Feb 12, 2019)

Fellow Subsidiaries {including subsidiaries
companies of the ultimate holding Company
{where transactions have taken place)

GMR Aviation Private Limited

GMR Male International Airport Private Limited

Raxa Security Services Limited

GMR Infrastructure Singapore Pte Limited

Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited

GMR Infra Services Limited (Formerly known as GMR SEZ
Infra Services Limited)
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Private Company in which a director or =

manager or his relatives is a director or ISW GMR Cricket Private Limited( formerly known as GMR
member Sports Private Limited)

Enterprise owned or significantly influenced by | GMR Family Fund Trust

key management personnel or their relatives | GMR Varalakshmi Foundation

Post-employment benefit plan of the Company | DIAL Employee’s Provident Fund Trust

Key management personnel | Mr. P. 8. Nair (Whole Time Director)

| M. Sidharath Kapur (Whole Time Director) "
Mr. G. M. Rao (Non- Executive Chairman)®
Mr. GBS Raju ( Vice Chairman) ®
Mr. I. Prabhakar Rao (Whaole Time Director)
, Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (Joint Managing Director and CEQY
| Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (Joint Managing Director) ®
| Mr. N.C. Sarabeswaran (Independent Director)
I Mr. R.5.5.L.N. Bhaskarudu (Independent Director)
| Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa {{Independent Director)
| Mr. Suresh Goyal (Nominee Director)

b - 7 T PR

10,
11.

During the year 2016-17 pursuant to the scheme of merger approved by NCLT on April 18, 2017 Hyderabad
Duty Free Retail Limited has been merged with GMR Hospitality and Retails Limited (Formerly known as
GMR Hotels and Resorts Limited) effective April 27, 2017

Step down subsidiary through DIAL.

Step down subsidiary through GADL

Step down subsidiary through GHIAL,

Mr. P.5. Nair has resigned w.e.f. May 15, 2018.

Mr. GBS Raju has been appointed as Non-Executive Vice Chairman w.e.f. May 15, 2018.

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar has been re designated from Non-Executive director to Joint Managing Director &
CEQ w.e.f June 01, 2018,

Mr. Srinivas Bommidala has been re designated from Non-Executive director to Joint Managing Director w.e.f
June 01, 2018.

Mr. G.M. Rao has been re designated from Executive Chairman to Non- Executive Chairman w.e.f June 01,
2018,

Mr. 1. Prabhakar Rao has been appointed as Whole Time Director w.e.f June 01, 2018,

Mr. Sidharath Kapur has been appointed as Whole Time Director w.e.f August 06, 2018 and resigned on
March 31, 2019.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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b} Details of transactions existing with related parties during the year along with balances as at year end:

A. Transactions during the year March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest Income

GMR Infrastructure Limited 711 3.24
GMR Airports International BV 6248 .

Aviation academy income

GMR. Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.96 0.76
GMR Aviation Private Limited £ 3
GMR Airport Developers Limited 1.39 0.21
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.13 0.31
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 0.05 0.01

GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo And Logistics Private
Limited (formerly known as Hyderabad Menzies Air

Cargo Private Limited) 0.08 0.10
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 0.01 0.02
Raxa Security Services Lid 0.01 -

Dividend income
GMR Airport Developers Limited

5.10 4.08
Delhi International Airport Limited - 101.92
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 9525 95.25
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 12.36 11.24
Delhi Airport Parking Services Pvt Ltd 4.90 -
Consultancy Income
GMR Hospitality And Retails Limited (formerly known
as GMR Hotels And Resorts Limited) 1.9 1.98
Interest income on financial asset measured at
amortized cost- Financial Guaraniee
GMR Airport Developers Limited 0.15 0.15
Cost Alloeation
GMR Hyderabad International Airport 2295 18.97
Delhi International Airport Ltd 80.47 64,12
Other expenses
Rent
Delhi International Airport Limited 1.29 -
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 1.3] -
GME Business Process And Services 0.09 -
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.24 0.29

Legal and professional fees

Raxa Security Services Limited

GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited

GMR Infrastructure Limited

GMR Aero Technic Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (formerly known
as GMR Hotels And Resorts Limited)

0.32

11.42

0.03
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A. Transactions during the year March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo And Logistics Private

Limited (formerly known as Hyderabad Menzies Air

Cargo Private Limited) 0.42 -

Lopo fees

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as

GMR Holding Private Limited) 0.50 0.41

Travelling and conveyance

GMR Aviation Private Limited 15.18 10.39

Delhi International Airport Limited - -

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.03 0.03

Training expenses

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.01

Electricity and water charges

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.11 0.13

Communication expenses

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.02 0.03

Delhi International Airport Limited - 0.03

CSR Expenditure

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation 0.61 1.03

Repair & Maintenance Expenses others

Delhi International Airport Limited 01.99 1.7%9

GMR Airport Developers Limited 7.00 4.67

Finance Cost

GMR Infrastructure Limited 18.08 21.08

Miscellaneous expenses

GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (formerly known

as GMR Hotels And Resorts Limited) 0.06 0.04

GMR Hyderabad International Airport z E

JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited (formerly known as

GMR Sports Private Limited) 0.75 -

Reimbursement of expenses

Delhi International Airport Limited 0.30 0.01

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.03 0.03

GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited 0.02 0.01

GMR Airport Developers Limited s =

GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.09 R

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation - 0.01

Recovery of expenses

GMR Infrastructure Limited /Eﬁ-ﬁ-‘@\\ 774
5 " PR i

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limite ,/' qm\ 19.07

e 1




GMR Airports Limited
CIN U65999K A1992PLC037455
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A. Transactions during the year March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
GMR Male International Airport Private Limited - 0.36
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.06 6412
GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Ple Limited 0.10 0.01
GMR. Goa International Airport Limited - 0.44
GMR Airport Developers Limited 0.04 =
Remuneration to key managerial personnel®

Salary, bonus and contribution to PF

Mr. P.S. Nair 0.11 .98
Mr. G.M.Rao 0.24 .00
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 3.4] =
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 3.41 -
Mr. Sidharath Kapur 1.26 =
Mr. 1. Prabhakar Rao .88 5
Director sitting fees

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 0.01 0.01
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala - 0.01
Mr. N.C. Sarabeswaran 0.04 0.04
Mr. B.S.5.L.N. Bhaskarudu 0.04 0.04
Mrs.Siva Kameswari Vissa 0.03 .04
Mr. GBS Raju 0.01 =
Mr. GM Rao 0.01 -
Loan given to

GMR Infrastructure Limited - 100.00
Loan refunded by:

GMR Infrastructure Limited 65,00 36.50
Loan taken from

GMR Infrastructure Limited z 430.00
Loan repaid to

GMR Infrastructure Limited 33043 99,57
MNon-current investment in subsidiary company

GMR Goa International Airport Limited 5 104.50
GMR Airports International BV 0.01 -
Investment in Optionally convertible debeniures

GMR Airports International BY 1,703.92 :
Investment in Share Application Money i

GMR Airports International BY 736 5
GMR. Goa International Airport Limited 10.00 -

MNon-current investment in joint venture company

International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession
SA
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A, Transactions during the year March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Security Deposit

Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 1.24 -
GMR Family Fund Trust 4.72
Conversion of CCPS to equity shares

GMR Infra Services Limited (formerly known as GMR

SEZ Infra Services Limited) 22.48 -
GMR Infrastructure Limited 64.94 -
Provision for doubtful debts (including non-trade

receivables)

Delhi International Airport Limited 0.03 -
GMR Airport Developers Limited 0.13 -
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.02 -
GMR Aero Technic Limited - -
Raxa Security Services Limited # 3
GMR Infrastructure Limited 010 -
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 0.22 -
GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Ple Litd. - =
Provision for doubtful advances -

GMR Infrastructure Limited 5.25 -

*The Management has allocated the "Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel” on the basis of Corporate Cost

Allocation methodology followed by the Company.

B. Balance outstanding as at year ended March 31, | March 31, | April 01,

2019 2018 2017
Investment in Group Company at cost
GMR Airport Developers Limited#

252.20 252.00 281.00
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

6,292.10 6,288.44 5,364.25
Delhi International Airport Limited

9,359.55 9,016.20 10,074.98
GMR Goa International Airport Limited

420.00 420.00 9.50
GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited

3.24 3.34 0.90
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

830.20 819,99 684.44
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited (DAPS)

200,30 - -

GMR Airports International B.V (Netherlands)
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(All amounts in Rupees crores, except otherwise stated)

B. Balance puistanding as at year ended March 31, | March 31, | April 01,
2019 2018 2017
GMR Airport Developers Limited# 253.20 252.00 281.00
Investment in Share Application Money
GMR Airports International BV 7.36 - E
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 10.00 = =
Investment on fair valuation of Financial Guarantee
GMR Airport Developers Limited 1.02 1.02 1.02
Trade receivables
Delhi International Airport Limited 017 (.36 =
GMR Airport Developers Limited 1.35 0.07 -
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - (.01 =
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (Formerly known as GMR Hotels And -
Resorts Limited} 0.58 0.53
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.28 0.24 0.06
GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo And Logistics Private Limited (formerly known -
as Hyderabad Menzies Air Cargo Private Limited) - -
GMR Aero Technic Limited - - 5
Raxa Security Services Limited 0.01 - =
Provision for doubtful debts- Trade Receivables = -
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.01 - -
GMR Airport Developers Limited 013 - .
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.02 = £
GMR Aero Technic Limited - s -
Raxa Security Services Limited = - -
MNon-Trade Receivables
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 4.74 8.36 3.20
GMR Infrastructure Limited 1.04 4.12 (.03
Delhi International Airport Limited 18.91 45.75 11.92
GMR Male International Airport Private Limited - 4.75 4.83
Raxa Security Services Limited 0.01 0.01 0.02
GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited - - 0.12
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 223 2.30 1.66
GMR Airport Developers Limited 0.04 - &
Provision for doubtful debis- Non- Trade Receivables
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - - -
GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.10 s 5
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.02 - &
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 0.22 2 B
GMR. Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited - - s
Raxa Security Services Limited - - -
Security Deposit
GMR Family Fund Trust 4,72 3.47

Grandhi Enterprises Pvt Limited
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{All amounts in Rupees crores, except otherwise stated)

B. Balance outstanding as at year ended March 31, | March 31, | April 01,
2019 2018 2017

Loans
GMR Infrastructure Limited 350.00 100.00 36.50
GMR Aviation Private Limited - - 4.43
Provision for doubtful advances = -
GMR Infrastructure Limited 5.25 - =
Other assets
Raxa Security Services Limited 0.01 0.01 -
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 0.08 0.08 -
Investment- Optionally convertible debentures
GMR Airports International B.V 1,668.42 =
Creditors for capital expenses
Delhi International Airport Limited = 0.14 5
Financial Liahility
GMR Airport Developers Limited 0.22 0.36 0.53
Trade payables - s
GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.03 0.45 1.28
Raxa Security Services Limited 0.79 0.41 1.06
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.87 - 2.04
GMR Family Fund Trust - 1.51 1.51
GMR Aviation Private Limited 2.13 1.82 0.99
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 0.02 0.04
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (Formerly known as GMR Hotels And

ti 0.02 - -
Resorts Limited)
GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited 0.02 0.02 0.01
GMR Enterprises Private Limited 0.50 0.4] 0.40
Grandhi Enterprises Pvt Ltd 022 - -
GMR Airport Developers Limited (.63 0.63
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited - 0.27
GMR Male International Airport Private Limited
Borrowings
GMR Infrastructure Limited - o -
Salary Payable o |
Mr. G. M. Rao - el 1.56

* Bonus share issued during the financial year 2017-18 in the ratio of 1:1

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties: -

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended
March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties (March 31, 2018: Rs Nil, April 01: Rs Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Contingent liabilities / Commitments with related parties:

The contingent liabilities and commitments in respect of related parties are provided in note no 40 above, forming part
of these standalone financial statements,

Transactions with key management personnel

The transaction with key management personnel includes the payment of director sitting fees and managerial
remuneration which are provided in note no 40(a) above, There are no other transactions with the Key management

personnel,

"The remuneration of the key management personnel is determined by the Remuneration commitiee having regard to
the performance of the individual and the market trend.

b} Interest in significant investment in subsidiaries and joint venture

MName of the Entitiy Relationship | Ownership Date of Country of
interest incorporation incorporation
Delhi International Airport Limited Subsidiary 64.00% March 01, 2006 India
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Subsidiary 63.00% December 17,2002 |  India
Limited
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited Subsidiary 17.03% July 07, 2009 India
GMR Airport Developers Limited Subsidiary 1% June 13, 2008 India
GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited Subsidiary 00 January 18, 2013 Mauritius
GMR Goa International Airport Limited Subsidiary 99.99% October 14, 2016 India
GMR Airports International BV Subsidiary 100% May 28, 2018 MNetherlands
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Subsidiary 40.10% February 11, 2010 India
Limited {Directly)
International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Joint Venture 10% February 12, 2019 Greece
iCﬂn::essiun SA

41. Segment Information

The Company is primarily engaged in a single segment i.e. Investment Activiti
are predominantly determined by its principal activity and the Company’s ag(i@iti

geographical segment.

il nd returns of the Company
c-s"ftl#w\\r:il in a single business and
o
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42, Fair Value

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities (except for certain other financial assets i.e. ‘Instruments
carried at fair value’) appearing in the standalone financial statements is reasonable approximation of fair values. Such
instruments carried at fair value are disclosed below:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars March 31, March 31, April 01, March 31, Mareh 31, April 01,
2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

Financial
assels
Investment in
Suhsidiecies 17,351.02 16,799.99 | 16.415.07 1735102 | 1679999 | 16.415.07
and Joint
ventures —r
Investment in
e find 50.06 31,15 6.55 50.06 31.15 6.55
Total 17,401.08 16,831.14 16,421.62 17,401.08 16,831.14 16,421.62

Assumption used in estimating the fair values:

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

43. Fair value Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2019:

Fair value measurement using
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial assets

measured at fair

value

Investments in

subsidiaries and

Joint venture

(Including share March 31, 2019 17.351.02 - - 17.351.02

application money

pending allotment)

Investment in

Mutual Fund March 31, 2019 50.06 50.06 - -
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2018:

Fair value measurement using

mutual fund

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unohservable
markets inputs inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial assets

measured at fair

value

Investments in

subsidiaries and

Joint venture

(Including share Wianh 3L 208 | agsepem 16.799.99
application money - ) i
pending allotment)

Iryeatiuent March 31, 2018 3115 3115 i ;

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at April 01, 2017;

Fair value measurement using

mutual fund

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inpuis inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial assets

measured at fair

value

Investments in

subsidiaries and

Joint venture ;

(Including share April 01, 2017 16,415.07 16,415.07
application money - )

pending allotment)

UimapeE April 01, 2017 6.55 655 : :

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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44. Risk Management
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and
other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company doesn't hold
"Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCH" investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies
and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments alfected by market
risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest
rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant in place at March 31,
2019,

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-
retirement obligations: provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations. The analysis for
the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 26.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

#  The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market
risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax (PBT) is affected
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrease in basis points | Effect on PBT
March 31, 2019* Amount
INR 25 bp increase - Decrease in profit -
INR 23 bp decrease - Increase in profit -
March 31, 2018
INR 25 bp increase - Decrease in profit =
INR 23 bp decrease - Increase in profit -

*As at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the company does not have any floating rate borrowings.
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Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily
to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the
Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all

other variables held constant. The impact on the Company s profit before tax (PBT) is due to changes in the fair value
of liabilities.

Effects on PBT

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
USD Sensitivity
INR/USD- Increase by 5% 83.41 0.15
INR/USD- decrease by 5% (83.41) (0.15)
EURO Sensitivity - -
INR/EUR- Increase by 5% (0.14) -
IMNR/EUR- decrease by 5% 0.14 =
SGD Sensitivity - -
INR/SGD- Increase by 5% - (0.01)
INR/SGD- decrease by 5% - 0.01
GBP Sensitivity - -
INR/GBP- Increase by 5% {0.01) {0,107
INR/GBP- decrease by 5% .01 0.10
CHF Sensitivity - -
INR/CHF- Increase by 3% 0.01 -
INR/CHF- decrease by 5% {0.01) -

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. The Company’s management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management.
Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash
Nows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

On Less than 3 Jtol2
Pl it L 1 to 5 years =5 years Total

As at March 31, 2019
Borrowings - 582.12 381.45 1.261.65 - 2,215.22
Trade payables 32.68 - - - - 32.68
S me Soaneal 1.29 0.04 0.11 0.07 3 151
liabilities
Taotal 33.97 582.16 381.56 1,351.72 - 2,259.41
As at March 31, 2018
R ) . 330.43 330.43
Trade payables _ )

26.91 26.91
Other financial
Liabilities .11 (.04 0.11 0.2 ) 146
Total

28.02 0.04 0.11 0.22 33043 358.81
As at April 01, 2017
Borrowings - 16.87 50.60 337.50 - 405.00
Trade payables 12.32 - - - 12.32
Other financial 10.43
Liabilities 9.90 0.04 0.11 0.38 - '
Total

18.47 1691 50.74 ST i 2515

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables- Customer credit risk is managed by Company subject to the Company’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on
an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any services to major customers are generally covered
by bank guarantee or other forms of credit assurance.

Financial instruments and cash deposits- Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by
the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made
only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counter party. Counterparty credit limits
are reviewed by the Company’s senior management on regular basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The
limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential
failure to make payments.

The Company has given Corporate Guarantee to Yes Bank Limited for issuing Term Loan o 100 Crores {March
31, 2018: Rs.100 Crores, April 01 : Rs.Nil) in respect of GMR AdnSgr elopers Limit EHH@ & 20)
1|::: 1
> r
‘-:'_'_l Q-?
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45. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend, payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debi divided by total equity plus total debt. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and other bank
balances not classified as cash & cash equivalents.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31,
2019, March 31, 2018 and April 01, 2017,

March 31, March 31, April 01,
2019 2018 2017

Debt Securities and Borrowings (including current 2,225.22 330.43 393.86
maturities) ’
Total debts (A) 2,225.22 33043 393.86
Share Capital 1,328.39 350.87 350.87
Other Equity 12,449.57 13,258.69 12.806.89
Total Equity {B) 13,777.96 13,609.56 13,157.76
Total equity and total debt (C=A+B) 16,003.18 13,939,099 13,551.62
Gearing ratio (%) (A/C) 13.90% 237 291%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the
current year. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018 and April 01, 2017,

(The space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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46. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

April 01, 2017

The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small

enterprises

Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms
of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting

year

The amount of interest due and payable for the
period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but bevond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining
unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

47. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis) *

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Legal and professional fees

14.72

11.38

Training expenses

1.37

0.68

Travelling and conveyance

335

6.63

Miscellaneous expenses

5.25

3.75

Total

24.69

22.44

*The above expenses are before cost allocation/recovery
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48. Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Aviation Academy Income 1.36 0.44
Interest income on OCD 62.48 -
Total 63.84 0.44

49(a). As per regulation 10 of the prudential norms issued by Reserve bank of India (“RBI™), every Non-Banking
Financial Institution i.e. Systematically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-S1) is required to make
provision @ 0.40% (March 31, 2018: 0.40%, April 01, 2017: 0.35%) on all standard assets and as per regulation 9
at other defined percentages for all “sub-standard assets, doubtful assets and loss assets™,

In order to comply with the prudential norms, the Company, based on the legal opinion, has identified only interest
bearing assets to be considered for provisioning. Accordingly, the Company has created provision on standard assets
@ 0.40% (March 31, 2018: 0.40%, April 01, 2017:0.35%) on inter corporate deposits only.

(b) In addition to above; management has also created provision (@ 15% on the loan to related party, trade receivables
and other receivables, as per the requirement of master directions-core investments companies (reserve bank)
Directions.

50. As per the terms of the Non-cumulative compulsory convertible participatory preference shares (CCPS) Class A
and as per the terms of the investor agreements (including amendments thereof) entered into during the years ended
March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Investor Agreement™), GMR
Infrastructure Limited (*GIL") had a call option to buy CCPS A from the Investors for a call price to be determined
as per the terms of Investor Agreement. The call option could be exercised by GIL on or before April 6, 2015, Had
the call option not been exercised by GIL before April 06, 2015, as per the investment agreement, each CCPS A
had to be converted into 82,821 equity shares of the Company with simultaneous conversion of CCPS B held by
GIL into equity shares of the Company as per Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, which
includes restrictions on promoters equity dilution in the Company and enterprise value of the Company at the time
of conversion etc.

GIL vide its letter dated April 1, 2015, had exercised the call option to buy CCPS A, subject to the regulatory
approvals. However, Investors initiated arbitration proceedings against the Company and GIL, seeking conversion
of the CCPS A. The oral hearings/submissions in the matter before Singapore International Arbitration Centre
(SIAC) were over and the matter was re-subjudice as judgment was awaited.

Pending receipt of arbitration award, on August 13, 2018, the Company, GIL and Investors had entered into a
Settlement Agreement and other related agreements [which was subject to acceptance of “Settlement agreement’
and receipt of “consent award” by SIAC], Accordingly, all parties together applied to SIAC for providing consent
award as per the terms of Settlement Agreement and consent was awarded on October 035, 2018.

As per the Settlement and other related agreements, both CCPS A and CCPS B were converted into fully paid up
equity shares of the Company i.e. 3,731,468 CCPS A have been converted into 309,043,911 equity shares, and
11,046,532 CCPS B have been converted into 668,476,606 equity shares. Resultantly, the expanded paid up equity
capital of the Company is 1,328,390,007 equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up. Further, after completion of
settlement process, Investors are owning 77,844,514 equity shares (representing 5.86% of the equity capital) of the
Company, and have also subscribed to Rs. 2,050 crores Non-convertible Debentures of the Company.
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(b) The Company has taken approval from the shareholders’ in Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
September 29, 2018, for issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures (*NCD") for an amount not exceeding Rs.
2,050.00 crores (Rupees Two Thousand fifty crores) on a private placement basis for the following purposes:

» for acquisition of or investment in airports and airport related assets,

» refinancing some of the existing loans of the Company and general corporate purposes including towards payment
of any fees and expenses for issuance of the NCDs

« in order to cater to the financial requirements of the future expansion plan of the Company.

The Company vide Information Memorandum dated October 15, 2018 and October 24, 2018, circulated letter of
offer to the selected Investors for issuance of 149,000 (One Lakh Forty Nine Thousand) and 56,000 (Fifty Six
Thousand) unlisted, unrated, unsecured, non-convertible debentures redeemable not more than three years from the
date of allotment aggregating upto Rs. 1,490 crores and Rs. 560 crores respectively on private placement basis. The
investors subscribed the issue on October 16, 2018 and October 24, 2018 respectively, the allotment of which was
approved by the Board of Director on the same date.

As per the terms of issuance, the IRR of NCDs issued to investors’ is 15% p.a. upon fulfilment of certain conditions
as given in the NCD agreements and 12% p.a. thereafter; and interest is effective from July 31, 2018, Accordingly,
interest expenses have been provided at the rate of 15% till March 31, 2019 of Rs 200,77 crore.

51. Net dividend remitted in foreign exchange

Year of remittance (ending on) March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Period to which it relates April 01, 2017 to April 01, 2016 to
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Number of non-resident shareholders 3 3

Mumber of Class A CCPS held on which dividend was due 3,539,250 3,539,250

Amount remitted (in USD) 47.64 52.26 -

Amount remitted (in INR) 3,539 3,539

(The space has been lefi blank intentionally)
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51(A). Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

April 01, 2017

Trade payables —

EUR 357,556 (@ 77.67 (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 2.78 Nil
01, 2017: Nil)

USD 93,111@ 69.16(March 31,2018 141,822 @
65.34, April 01,2017: 186,207 [@65.66)

SGD 4,856 @ 51.04(March 31, 2018: SGD 35,279
@ 49.82, April 01,2017: SGD 5,618 @ 47.11) 0.02 0.18
GBP 30,000 @ 90.53 (March 31, 2018: 206,114 @ 0.27 1.90
92,28, April 01,2017: Nil)

0.64 0.93

il

1.22

0.03
Nil

Trade receivables —

USD 47,314 @ 69.16 (March 31, 2018: USD 4,000 0.33 0.03
@ 65.34, April 01,2017: USD 12,000 @ 65.60)

0.08

Other Receivable —

USD 678 (@ 69.16 (March 31, 2018: Nil, April 01, 001 Mil
2017: Nily

Nil

Oither Assets —

USD Nil (March 31, 2018: USD 753,382 (@ 65.34 Nil 4,92
April 01, 20017 USD 754,629 (@ 65.60)

4.95

OCD (Investment in Optionally Convertible
Debentures) — -
1,606.82 il
Principal USD 232,350,000 (@ 69.16 (March 2018 .
Nil, April 01, 2017: Nil) 61.61 Nil

Interest USD 8,908,753 (@ 69.16 (March 2018 Nil,
April 01, 2017: Nil)

Nil
Nil

Security Deposit —

CHF 28,053 @69.43 (March 31, 2018 Nil, April 01, 0.20 Nil
2017: Nil)

Nil

Advance from Customer—

USD Nil (March 31, 2018: 150,000 @ 65.34, April Nil 0.98
01, 2017: Nil)

Nil

{The space has been left blank intentionally)
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52. During the year, the Company entered into Subscription agreement for ‘Optionally Convertible Debenture’ (*OCD")
with ‘GMR Airport International BV" {on October 12, 2018). As per the subscription agreement, GAL has agreed to
subscribe OCD of maximum aggregate amount upto Rs. USD 290 million, in one or more tranches. Face value of each
OCD shall be 1000 USD, 0 % OCD. The OCD shall be redeemable along with 9% IRR payable on the maturity date
or conversion date along with the investment amount. GAL and GIA BV, both have an option for early redemption of
OCD in part or full which can be exercised anytime during the tenure of such instrument by giving 15 days’ notice.

Accordingly, the company has subscribed OCD of USD 232.35 million (INR 1703.92 crore) and GAL has accounted
for interest income of Rs. 62.48 crore on OCD, from the date of subscription to March 31, 2019, in the financial results.

The foreign exchange loss of Rs. 97.97 crore on reinstatement of OCD as at March 31, 2019 has been charged to P&L

during the quarter.

53. Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to companies in which directors are interested

GMR Infrastructure Limited

Balance as at March 31, 2019: Rs 35 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs 100 crores).
Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs. 100 crores (March 31, 2018: Rs. 100 crores),

There is no repayment schedule in respect of this loan. The initial term of the loan as per agreement was for three

months which has been further extended upto May 31, 2019,

54, Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered
or settled, Issued debt reflect the contractual coupon amortizations™:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017
Within Within Within
Assets 12 After 12 Total 12 Alter 12 Total 12 After 12 Total
months maonths months
maonths months months
Cash and cash
equivalents 167 - 1.67 1.71 - 1.71 6.99 - 6.99
Bank balance
other than cash
and cash - 11.95 11.95 - 1.25 1.25 105.18 - 105.18
equivalents
Trade
Raceivables 2.94 - 2.94 63.65 - 63.65 52.90 - 52.90
Loans 31.46 1.22 32.68 104,80 1.31 106.11 41.61 0.75 42.36
Investments 8432 | 19,003.16 19,087.48 31.15 16,801.00 16,832.15 6.56 | 1641609 | 16,422.65
Other financial
assels 44.21 2 44.21 65.32 - 65.32 23.44 - 23.44
Non-financial
Assets
Current tax
assets (net) - 60.65 665 - 59.60 59.60 21.75
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March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

April 01, 2017

Assets

Within
12
maonths

After 12
months

Total

Within
12
months

After 12
months

Total

Within
12
months

After 12

months Total

Deferred tax
assets (net)

T72.18

72.18

2.36

2.36

0.18 0.18

Property, plant
and equipment

4.59

4.59

6.55

6.55

8.85 8.85

Other non-
financial assels

T.80

0.14

7.94

7.88

0.24

B.12

6.63

0.26 6.89

Total Assets

172.40

19,153.89

19,326.29

274.51

16,872.31

17,146.82

243.31

16,447.88 | 16,691.19

LIABILITIES

Financial
Liabilities

Trade Payables

(1) total
outstanding
dues of micro
enterprises and
small
enterprises

(ii) total
outstanding
dues of creditors
other than micro
enterprises and
small
enterprises

32.68

32.68

26.91

26.91

12.32

Debt Securities

963.58

1,261.64

2,225.22

Borrowings
{other than Debt
Securities)

33043

33043

67.50

326.56 393.86

Other financial
liahilities

1.44

0.07

1.25

0.21

1.46

10.04

0.39 10.43

Current tax
liabilities (net)

.13

1.13

1.13

.13

1.13

Provisions

5.19

6.67

15.86

748

748

4.60

- 4.60

Deferred tax
liabilities (net)

3,237.62

3,237.62

3,151.79

3,151.79

3,107.68 |  3,107.68

Other Mon-
financial
Liabilities

34.31

34.31

18.06

18.06

341

3.41

Total liabilities

1,042.33

4,506.00

5,548.33

54.83

3.482.43

3,537.26

99.00

343443 3,53343

MNet

(869.93)

14,647.89

13,777.96

219.68

13,389.88

13,609.56

144.31

13,013.45 | 13,157.76
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55. First Time Adoption of Ind AS for the purpose of standalone Financial Statements

These standalone financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2019, have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (IndAS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. as amended. For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018 the
Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending
on March 31, 2019, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018, as described
in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these standalone financial statements, the Company’s
opening balance sheet was prepared as at April [, 2017, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains
the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance
sheet as at April 1, 2017 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018,

Exemptions applied:-

Deemed cost- Previous GAAP carrying amount: (PPE)

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognized as of
April 1, 2017 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of
the transition date.

Use of Estimates

The estimates at April 01, 2017 and at March 31, 2018 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance
with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) apart from impairment of financial
assets based on expected credit loss model where application of Indian GAAP did not require estimation.

Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

The estimates used by the company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at April 1,
2017, the date of transition to Ind AS, as of March 31, 2018.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The company has elected to apply the derecognition requirements for financial assets and financial liabilities in Ind AS
109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circomstances
that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Impairment of financial assets: (Trade receivables and other financial assets)

At the date of transition to Ind ASs, the Company has determined that there significant increase in credit risk since the
initial recognition of a financial instrument would require undue cost or effort, the Company has recognized a loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date until that financial instrument is
derecognised (unless that financial instrument is low credit risk at a reporting date).
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First-time Ind AS

Adoption reconciliations

Effect of Ind AS Adoption on the balance sheet as at April 01, 2017:

As at April 1, 2017
Particulars s Previous Effect of transition | As per Ind AS Balance
GAAP to Ind AS Sheet
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6.99 - 6.99
Bank balance other than cash and 105.18 - 105.18
cash equivalents
Trade Receivables 5290 - 52.90
Loans (i) 42.08 (0.28) 42.36
Investments {iii} and 2.246.03 14,176.62 16,422.65
(viii)
Other financial assets 2344 - 2344
MNon- financial assets -
Current tax assets (net) 21.75 - 21.75
Deferred tax assets (net) (V) 1.30 (1.12) 0.18
Property. plant and equipment B.85 - B.B3
Other non- financial assets (i) and 14.71 (7.84) 0.89
(if)
Total 2,523.79 14,167.40 16,691.19
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 12.32 - 12.32
than micro enterprises and small enlerprises
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) (i) 405.00 (11.14) 393.86
Other financial liabilities {(vii) 9.90 0.53 10.43
Mon-financial liabilities & -
Current tax liabilities (net} 1.13 1.13
Provisions 4.60 - 4.60
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (v) - 3,107.68 3,107.68
and
{viii)
Other Mon-financial Liabilities 341 - 341
Equity - -
Equity share capital 350.87 - 350.87
Other equity 1,736.56 12,806.89
Tuotal 2,523.79 16,691.19
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Effect of Ind AS Adoption on the balance sheet as at March 31, 2018:

As at March 31, 2018

] Motes 3
Frtistinry Pariln: 5 tmEnl:;';itar? [;n As per Ind AS Balance Sheet
Ind AS
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.71 1.
Bank balance other than cash 1.25 - 1.25
and cash equivalents
Trade Receivables 63.65 - 63.65
Loans (i) 106.40 (0.29) 106.11
Investments (iii} and 2,375.05 14,457.09 16,832.15
(viii)
Other financial assets 65,32 - 65.32
Mon- financial assets -
Current tax assets (net) 59.60 - 59.60
Deferred tax assets (net) (v} 2.40 (0.04) 236
Property, plant and equipment 6.55 - 6.55
Other non- financial assets (i) 7.74 038 8.12
Total 2,689.67 14,457.15 17,146.82
Particulars Ad ot March
31,2018
Notes Previous Effect of transition | As per Ind AS Balance
GAAP to Ind AS Sheet
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables -
(i) total outstanding dues of micro - -
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of 26.91 - 26.91
creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Borrowings (other than Debt 33043 - 330.43
Securities)
Other financial liabilities {vii) 1.11 0.35 I.46
Mon financial liabilities 5 -
Current tax liabilities (net) 1.13 - 1.13
Provisions 7.48 - 748
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (v} 3,151.79 315179
and
{viii)
Other Non-financial Liabilities 18.06 - 18.06
Equity - -
Equity share capital 350.87 - 350.87
Other equity 1,953.68 11,305.01 13,258.69
Total 2,689.67 17,146.82
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018:

Income) for the year

MNotes Previous GAAP | Ind AS adjustments Ind AS
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Particulars
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 9.51 - 9.51
Dividend Income 212.49 212.49
Revenue from contracts with 122 20 _ 122.20
customers
Met gain on fair value changes (it} 6.13 0.07 6,20
Total revenue from operations 350.33 .06 350,39
Other Income (i) 111_nd 0.00 0.25 0.25
{vii)
Total Income 350.33 0.32 350.64
Expenses
Finance Costs (i) 3048 11.14 50.62
Fees and commission expenses (ii) 842 (8.13) 0.29
Employee benefits expenses (iv) 13.94 0.05 13.99
Depreciation expense 0.82 - 0.82
Other expenses (i) 34.77 0.09 34.86
Total Expenses 97.43 3.15 100.58
Profit/{loss) before exceptional 252.90 ) 250.07
items and tax B )
Exceptional items 3231 2 32.31
Profit/(loss) before tax 220.59 2.83 217.76
{13 Current Tax 4.48 ; 4.48
{2) Deferred Tax charge/ (credit) (v} (1.12) {1.09) (2.19)
Profit/(loss) for the year 217.21 .72 215.47
Other Comprehensive Income
(A) ltems that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/{losses) {iv)
on defined benefit plans ) e i
Income tax effect on defined (iv)
benefit plans ) (0.02) e
Re-measurement gains/(losses) [viii) ) 28041 280.41
on revaluation of investment ) '
Income tax effect revaluation of | (viii) and
investment (v) ) by a0
Other Comprehensive Income ,
net of income tax (A+B) i
Total Comprehensive Loss/ ( 451.80
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Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 01,2017 and March 31, 2018 and total comprehensive income
for the year ended March 31, 2018:

(i). Security deposit

Under the Indian GAAP, Interest free security deposit given for lease (that are refundable in cash on completion of its
term) are recorded at their transaction value. Under IND AS, The Company has fair valued these security deposits
under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as
deferred revenue/ prepaid rent. The corresponding adjustments have been recognised in retained earnings as at the
date of transition and subsequently in the profit and loss.

(ii). Borrowing

Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying
amount of borrowings on initial recognition, These costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss over the tenure
of the borrowings as part of the interest expense by applying the effective interest method.

Under the previous GAAP, these transactions cost were amortized on a straight line basis over the period of loan.
Under Ind-AS, unamortised prepaid upfront cost has been reversed with a corresponding adjustment to borrowings.

(iii). Fair valuation of investments in mutual fund

Under the previous GAAP, investments in mutual fund are classified as current investment based on the intended
holding period and reliability, Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value, Under Ind AS, these
investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been
recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the profit or loss.

(iv). Remeasurement of post-employment benefit plans

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gain and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included
in the net interest expense on the net defined liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit
or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these measurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year.

(v). Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences
between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes
using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or
liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of
deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP,

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies,
the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in retained earmings or a separate component of equity.

(vi). Other comprehensive income
Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI) separately. Hence, it has

reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or loss as per Ind AS, Further, Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled
to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.
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(vii). Financial guarantee given on behalf of its Subsidiaries

Under Indian GAAP, Company has disclosed the financial guarantees given on behalf of its Subsidiaries for free of
cost under the Contingent liabilities.

As per Ind AS 109, these g///uarantees have been fair valued at the date of transition. Accordingly, the Company has
recognised the financial liability as on the date of transition and income on fair valuation is recognised over the tenure
of the guarantee.

(viii). Fair valuation of investments in equity shares

Under Indian GAAP, the Company accounted for long term investments in equity shares of subsidiaries as investment
measured at cost less provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of investments, Under Ind AS,
Company has designated such investments as FVOCI investments. Ind AS requires FVOCI investments to be
measured at fair value. At the date of transition to Ind AS, difference between the instruments fair value and Indian
GAAP carrying amount has been recognised as a separate component of equity, in the FVOCI reserve, net of related
deferred taxes.

{ix). Statement of cash flows

56.

57

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.

The Company had provided for Current Income Tax liability for the year 2018-19 as per Income Tax Act, 1961;
considering the book profit as per financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Ind AS financial statements). For the purpose of
these standalone financial statements, the Company has considered the current Income tax expenses / liability arrived
at basis Ind AS financial statements,

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company refinanced its existing term loan taken from Axis Bank amounting
to Rs. 388.12 crores outstanding as at September 15, 2017; by taking a loan from its holding Company. As a result of
such refinancing, the Company has incurred prepayment charges of Rs. 32.31 crores which have been disclosed as
“Exceptional ltem” in the standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018,

. Due to inadequacy of the profits, the remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 paid by the company to four of

39.

its managerial personnel is in excess of limits prescribed under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies
Act, 2013, by Rs 4.75 crores. The management is in the process of obtaining shareholders’ approval in the ensuing
extra-ordinary general meeting of the company for the excess amount paid,

Till March 31, 2019; Company has incurred Rs. 19,75 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 5.94 crores) in connection with the
proposed Initial public offer (IPO) of its equity shares. Considering management have called off the 1PO process;
Company has expensed off Rs. 15.90 crores to the statement of profit & loss and for the remaining balance of Rs 3.85
crores; management is of the view that it shall be adjusted against the securities premium to be generated from the
upcoming fund raising activity as permitted under section 52 of Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, this amount has
been included under “Other current assets” in the balance sheet.

. In terms of Section 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961, certain Ind AS adjustments at the Ind AS transition date (April

01,2017) to be included in book profits equally over a period of five years starting from the year of first time adoption
of Ind AS i.e. FY 2018-19. Pursuant to above, the Company had ascertained that there is no impact of the Ind AS
adjustments to the Company’s tax liability.
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61. Certain amounts (currency value or percemiages) shown in the various tables and paragraphs included in these
standalone statements have been rounded off or truncated as deemed appropriate by the management of the Company.
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